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Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System

j Annual Report of Holding Companies-FR Y-6

Report at the close of business as of the end of fiscal year

This Report is required by law: Section S(cX1XA) of the Bank
Holding Company Act (12 U.S.C. S 18214(cX1XA)); sections 8(a)
and 13(a) of the lnternational Banking Act (12 U.S.C. SS 3106(a)
and 3108(a)); sections 11(aXl), 25, and 25A of the Federal
Reserve Act (12 U.S.C. SS 248(aX1), 602, and 611a); and sec-
tions 113, 165,312,618, and 809 of the Dodd-Frank Act (12 U.S.C.

SS 5361, 5365, 5412, 1850a(c)(1), and 5468(bX1)). Return to the
appropriate Federal Reserve Bank the original and the number of
copies specified.

This report form is to be filed by all top-tier bank holding compa-
nies, top-tier savings and loan holding companies, and U.S. inter-
mediate holding companies organized under U.S. law, and by
any foreign banking organization that does not meet the require-
ments of and is not treated as a qualifying foreign banking orga-
nization under Section 211.23 ot Regulation K (12 C.F.R. S
211.23). (See page one of the general instructions for more detail
of who must file.) The Federal Reserve may not conduct or spon-
sor, and an organization (or a person) is not required to respond
to, an information collection unless it displays a currently valid
OMB control number.

NOTE: The Annual Report of Holding Companies must be signed by
one director of the top-tier holding company. This individual should
also be a senior official of the top-tier holding company. ln the event
that the top-tier holding company does not have an individual who is
a senior offlcial and is also a director, the chairman of the board must
sign the report. lf the holding company is an ESOP/ESOT formed as
a corporation or is an LLC, see the General lnstructions for the
authorized individual who must sign the report.

t, J. Scott Spiker
Name of the Holding Company Director and Official

Chairman and CEO
Title of the Holding Company Director and Official

attest that the Annual Report of Holding Companies (including
the supporting attachments) for this report date has been pre-
pared in conformance with the instructions issued by the Federal
Reserve System and are true and correct to the best of my
knowledge and belief.

With respect to information regarding individuals contained in this
repofi, the Reporter certifies that it has the authority to provide this
information to the Federal Reserve. The Reporter also ceftifies
that it has the authoity, on behalf of each individual, to consent or
object to public release of information regarding that individual.
The Federal Reserve mayassume, in the absence of a requestfor
confidential treatment submitted in accordance with the Board's
"Rules Regarding Availability of lnformation,' 12 C.F.R. Part 261,
that and consent to public release of all Area code i FAX Number

n individual. dcworrell@firstcommand. com
E-mailAddress

www,firstcommand.com

Date of Report (top-tier holding company's fiscal year-end):

September 30,2017
Month/DaylYear

Reporter's Legal Entity ldentifier (LEl) (20-Character LEI Code)

Reporter's Name, Street, and Mailing Address

First Command Financial Planning, lnc. Employee Stock
Ownershio Plan Trust
Legal Title of Holding Company

1 FirstComm Plaza
(Mailing Address of the Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box

Fort Worth TX 76109
City State Zip Code

Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Person to whom questions about this report should be directed:
Douglas C. Worrell Treasurer
Name Title

817-569-2497
Area Code / Phone Number / Extension

817-569-2468

of and

3t2017 Address (URL) for the Holding Company's web page

Date of

For Federal Reserve Bank Use Only

RSSD ID
c.t.

18233 Zt

Office of Management and Budget, PapeMork Reduction Pro,iect (710G0297), n/ashington, DC 20503. 12tZO16

For holding companies not registered with the SEC-
lndicate status of Annual Report to Shareholders:

Etr is included with the FR Y-6 report

E witl oe sent under separale cover

E is not prepared

0=No

1=Yes 0
ls confidentlal treatment requested for any portion
of this repott submission?...
ln accordance with the General lnstructions for this report
(check only one),

1. a letterlustlfylng this request ls belng provldod along
wlth the report . . . .... ...

2. a letterlustifylng thls request has besn provided
separately..,..

NOTE: lnformatlon for whlch confidentlal treatment is being
requested must be provided separately and labeled
as "confidential."

tr
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Page2 ol 2

For Use By Tiered Holding Companies
Top-tiered hotding companies must tist the names, mailing address, and physical locations of each of their subsidiary holding companies

below.

First Command Financial Services, lnc.
Legal Trfle of Subsidiary Holding Company

1 FirstComm Plaza

Legal Trtle of Subsidiary Holding Company

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / PO. Box

Fort Worth TX 76109

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box

City State Zip Code State Zip CodeCity

Physical Location (if different from mailing address) Physical Location (if different ftom mailing address)

Legal Tifle of Subsidiary Holding Company Legal Tltle of Subsidiary Holding Company

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box (Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / PO. Box

City State Zip Code State Zip CodeCity

Physical Location (if different from maillng address) Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Legal T]fle of Subsidiary Holding Company Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / PO. Box (Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box

City State Zip Code State Zip CodeCity

Physical Location (if difrerent from mailing address) Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box (Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / PO. Box

City State StateCity

Physical Location (if difrerent from mailing address)

Zip Code

Physical Location (if difierent from mailing address)

Zip Code

12t2012



Subsidiaries of Registrant

Name & Address

Date and % ofVoting Shares, Partnership

I nterest, Voti ng Trust Certif icates

Capital Contributions

Legal Entity ldentifier
(LEl)

First Command Financial Planning, lnc' -

Employee Stock Ownership Plan Trust

(FCFP ESOP Trust), Fort Worth, Tx 76109

First Command Financial Services, lnc,

(FCFS, lnc.), Fort Worth, Tx 76109

First Command Financial Planning, lnc'

Fort Worth, TX 76109

First Command Financial Services, lnc. (Montana)

Fort Worth, Tx 75109

First Command EuroPe Ltd.

Mildenhall, Suffolk, lP28 7DF, United Kingdom

First Command Bank

Fort Worth, TX 76109

First Command lnsurance Services, lnc.

Fort Worth, TX 76109

First Command Life lnsurance Company

Fort Worth, TX 76109

Flrst Command Advisory Services, lnc

Fort Worth, TX 76109

100% Owner of FCFS as of 2002

State of lncorporation - Texas

Parent ComPanY

State of lncorporation - Texas

100% Owned by FCFS as of 1981

State of lncorporation - Texas

100% Owned bY FCFS as of 1983

State of lncorporation - Montana

100% Owned by FCFS as of 2008

lncorporated in the U.K.

100% Owned by FCFS as of 1997

State of lncorPoration - Texas

100% Owned by FCFS as of 1999

State of lncorporation - Texas

100% Owned by FCFS as of 2001

State of lncorporation - Texas

100% Owned by FCFS as of 2014

State of lncorporation - Texas

LEI - none

LEI _ 5493OOKKA8UHKS7KOK34

LEI - none

LEI - none

LEI - none

LEI - none

LEI - none

LEI - none

LEI - none
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lndependenl Audilor's Reporl

Boord of Directors
First Commond FinonciolServices, lnc. ond Subsidiorles

We hove oudited the occomponying consolidoted finonciol stolements of First Commond Finonciol
Services, lnc. (lhe Compony) ond ils subsidiories, which comprise the consolidoted bolonce sheets os of
September 30, 20I7 ond 2016, ond lhe reloted consolidoted stotements of operotions, comprehensive
income, chonges in stockholder's equity, ond cosh flows for lhe yeors lhen ended, ond the reloted
notes to the consolidoted finonciol stolemenls.

Monogemenf's Respon sibility lor lhe Consolldole d Finonciol Sfolemenfs

Monogemenl is responsible for the preporolion ond foir presentolion of these consolidoted finonciol
stotements in occordonce with occounting principles generolly occepled in lhe United Stotes of
Americo; this includes the design, implemenlotion, ond mointenonce of internol control relevonl to the
preporotion ond foir presentotion of consolidoted flnonciol stotements thot ore free from moteriol
misstotement, whether due to froud or error.

Audilor's Responsibilify

Our responsibility is lo express on opinion on these consolidoled finonciol stolements bosed on our
oudits. We conducled our oudits in occordonce with ouditing stondords generolly occepted in the
United Stoles of Americo. Those slondords require thot we plon ond perform the oudit to obtoin
reosonoble ossuronce obout whether the consolidoled flnonciol stotemenls ore free from moteriol
misstotement.

An oudit involves performing procedures lo obtoin oudit evidence obout the omounts ond disclosures

in lhe consolidoted finonciol stolements. The procedures selected depend on the ouditor's judgment,

including lhe ossessment of the risks of moteriol misslolement of the consolidoted finonciol stotemenls,
whelher due to froud or error. ln moking lhose risk ossessmenls, the ouditor considers inlernol conlrol
relevont to the entily's preporotion ond foir presentotion of the consolidoted finonciol stotements in

order lo design oudit procedures thot ore oppropriole in lhe circumslonces, bul not for the purpose of
expressing on opinion on the effectiveness of the enlity's internol control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An oudit olso includes evoluoting lhe opproprioleness of occounting policies used ond
the reosonobleness of significont occounting eslimoles mode by monogement, os well os evoluoling
the overoll presentotion of lhe consolidoted finonciolstolements.

We believe thot lhe oudit evidence we hove obtoined is sufficient ond oppropriote to provide o bosis

for our oudit opinion.

AN INDEPENDENT MEMBER OF

BAKER TILLY INTERNATIONAL

WEAVER AND TIDWELL, L.L.P.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND ADVISORS

2821 WEST SEVENTH STREET, SUITE 7OO, FORT WORTH, TX 76107

P:817.332.7905 F:817.429.5936



Boord of Directors
First Commond Finonciolservices, lnc. ond Subsidiories

Opinion

ln our opinion, the consolidoled finonciol stotemenls refened to obove present foirly, in oll moteriol

respects, the finonciol posilion of Fhst Commond Finonciol Services, lnc. ond its subsidiories os of
Seplember 30, 20l7 ond 2016, ond the results of their operotions ond their cosh flows for the yeors then

ended in occordonce wilh occounting principles generolly occepted in the United Stoles of Americo'

f,,lu,rs, a^e Ur,4A-,{.t.?.
WEAVER AND TIDWELL, L.L.P.

Fort Worth, Texos
December 8,2017

2



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



FIRST COMMAND FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

SEPTEMBER 30, 20{7 AND 2016

2017

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

tMarketable sec u rities

Trading, at fair value

Available-for-sale, at fair value (amortized cost of

$1 52, 1 1 9,266 and $1 41,697,723 in 2017 and 201 6,

respectively)

Commissions and fees receivable

Accounts receivable

Property, equipment, and software, net of

accumulated depreciation of $77,334,380

and$70,222,019 in 2017 and2016, respectively

Deferred acquisition costs

Prepaid expenses

Advisor advanced com m iss ions

First Command Bank assets

Cash and due from banks

lnvestments

Held-to-maturity, at cost (fair value of $320,594,076

and $293,514,101 in 2017 and2016, respectively)

Alailable-for-sale, at fair value (amortized cost of

$84,478,645 and $86,836,875 in 2017 and2016,

respectively)

Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of

$1 ,971 ,403 and $2,068, 1 41 in 2017 and 2016, respectively

Property, equipment, and software, net of
accumulated depreciation of $7,540, 1 73

and $6,763,380 in 2017 and 2016, respectively

Accrued interest receivable and other assets

TOTAASSETS

2016

$ 10,143,702 $ 12,223,361

32,2U,M0 26,664,969

156,185,911

35,785,880

3,690,713

39,833,234

4,462,014

4,453,351

6,571,373

84,306,634

3,124,100

13,738,428

6,398,611

1M,921,212

33,488,239

3,163,839

39,067,074

4,573,152

4,193,935

6,546,367

87,070,078

3,094,100

14,507,164

5,894,614

59,525,080 32,190,981

323,058,884 292,707,109

274,948,482 283,223,072

3
See notes to consolidated financial statements.

$1,057,511,037 $ 993,529,265



FIRSTGoMMANDFINANGIALSERVICES,INc.ANDSUISIDIAR|ES
CoNSoLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (CONTINUED)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016

2017 2016

LIABILITIES

Accrued bonuses PaYable

Accrued commissions PaYable

Accounts payable and other liabilities

Advance commissions PaYable

Accrued Mission Accomplishment Plan payable

Deferred Career Commission Plan payable

Notes PaYable

Accrued employee retirement contributions

Future policY benefits

First Command Bank liabilities

Deposits

Federal Home Loan Bank advances

Accrued interest payable and other liabilities

Total liabilities

STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY

Capitalstock
Additional Paid-in caPital

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Treasury stock

674,605,184

20,000,000

650,352,228

5,717,588 5,976.699

9U,321,037 925,053,620

$ 10,933,829 $

17,162,655

11,672,321

10,158,476

195,600,708

15,009,M9

6,159,803

17,300,824

10,003,897

15,251,109

11,867,689

10,282,980

181,956,596

14,594,885

3,010,182

5,777,8U

15,979,501

63,366

6,487,946

u,887,451
2,856,638

(1,105,401)

63,366

6,487,grc

60,987,143

2,042,591
(1, 105.401)

Total stockholder's equitY 73,190,000 68,475,U5

TOTAL LIABILITIES AI.ID STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY $1,957,9]lJL $ 993,529,265

4
See notes to consolidated financial statements



FTRST COMMAND FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016

2017 2016

COMMISSIONS Al.ID FEE REVENUE

lnsurance sales

lnvestment sales

Asset management
Financial planning

Other service fee income

Totalcormissions and fee revenue

lnvestment income

Trading gains, net

Crains (losses) on sale of marketable securities, net

Other income, net

Total revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES

Commissions and advisor expenses

Mssion accomplishment Plan
General and administrative expenses

lnterest expense

Total operating expenses

FIRST COMMAiID BAIK OPERATIONS

lnterest income on loans

lnterest income on investments

lnterest expense on deposits

Provision for loan losses

SeMce fee and other income

General and administrative expenses

Total First Gonmnd Bank operations

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TA(ES

PROMSION FOR INCOME TAGS

NET INCOME

242,735,1M 231,182,439

$ 81,476,635
30,648,199

113,015,336
2,083,301

15,511,693

$ 81 ,112,489
27,754,016

102,037,390

2,052,194
350I

5,757,183
2,557,428
1,926,893

852

255,426,520 238,141,491

5,660,367
561,862

(1,699,921)

2,436,7M

(129,139,105)
(33,354,917)

(100,612,986)
Q.827\

(117,326,245)
(31,980,265)
(98,380,621)

(26,702\

(263,109,835) (247,713,833)

13,692,887

7,705,458
(988,681)

(366,945)

15,616,653

13,638,013

6,780,620
(985,282)

(607,082)

14,136,438
(21,100,005)Q1,635.250)

14,024,122 11,862,702

6,340,807

(426,458)

$ 5,914,349

2,290,360

(482,078)

5
See notes to consolidated financial statements.

$ t,808,282



FIRST COMMAND FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016

2017

CONSOLIDATED NET INCOME $ 5,914,349 $ 1,808,282

Net change in unrealized gains during the period 2,079,421 4,538,122

Reclassifi cation adjustment for

net (gains) losses included in net income (1,641,997) 1,969,705

Deferred tax benefit (expense) related to change in unrealized

gains and losses on FCLIC securities availablefor-sale 376,623

Net change in other comprehensive income 814,047 5,683,805

CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $ 6,728,396 $ 7,492,087

2016

6
See notes to consolidated financial statements.



FlRsTCoMMANDFlNANCIALsERvlcEs,tNc.ANDsUBSlDlARlEs
con'sbilblieo surellitri oe CHANGES rN STocKHoLDER's EQUITY

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017 AND 2016

Accumulated

Additional Other Total

Capihl Paid'in Retained Comprchensive Treasury Stockholde/s

Siocf Capital Earnings lncome (Loss) Stock Equitv

BAI-ANCE September 30' 20'15

l,let income

Other comprehensi\e income, net change in

unrealized holding gEins and losses on securities

a\Eilable for sale, net of ta( expense ol $824,022

Dridend paid

BALAIICE, September 30, 2016

Net incomo

Other comprehensiw income' net change in

unrealized holding gains and losses on securities

auilable for sale, net of tat benefit of $376'623

Diridend Paid

BALANCE, SePtember 30, 2017

See notes to consolidated financial statements'

$ 63,366 $ 6,487,946 $ 61,631,031 $

'1,808,282

(3,641,214) $ (1,105,401) t tl,lll,lll

- 5,683,805

60,987,1€ 2,042,591 (1'105,401)

5,914,349

5,683,805

2.452.170)

68,475,645

5,914,349

63,366 6,487,946

814,U7 814,047

(2,014,041)

-9--q9qq- -$-9ds7g9- -$--e$9lJg]- -!---agq99!- -!-llJggl!u $ 73, 190.000

7



FIRST COMMAND FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016

2017

OPERATTNG ACTIVITIES

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to

net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization expense

Gain on sale of property and equipment

Provision for loan losses

Net amortization of Bank investments and marketable securities

Dividends reinvested in marketable securities - available-for-sale

Dividends reinvested in marketable securities - trading

(Gains) losses on sale of marketable securities - net \
Trading (gains) and losses - net

Purchase of marketable securities - trading

Proceeds from sales/maturity of marketable securities - trading

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Commissions and fees receivable

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Advance commissions payable

Accrued M[ssion Accomplishment Plan payable

Deferred Career Commission Plan payable

Net cash provided by operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of securities

Bank investments, held-to-maturity

Bank investments, available-for-sale

Ivhrketable securities, availablejor-sale

Sales, maturities, calls, paydowns, of securities

Bank investments, held-to-m aturity

Bank investments, available-for-sale

ltilarketable securities, available-for-sale

Purchase of Federal Home Loan Bank stock

Proceeds from redemptions of Federal Home Loan Bank stock

Net decrease (increase) in bank loans

Purchase of property, equipment and software

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

2016

$ 5,914,349 $ 1,808,282

8,639,152

(6,500)

366,945

2,350,377

(1,490,053)

(1,078,701)

(1,926,893)

(2,557,428)

(5,481,525)

3,778,746

6,716,439

607,082

2,504,344
(1,766,346)

(1,174,458)

1,699,921

(561,862)

(3,887,814)

3,760,274

Q,297,641)
(526,874)

(677,281)

4,466,376

(124,504)

13,644,112

(2,076,247)

(129,946)

126,321

1,128,081

973,050

11,764,784

144,141414 764

23,407 ,421 21,636,046

(230,611,431)

(16,309,977)

(62,025,574)

(224,153,408)

(46,21 0,1 1 9)

(31,605,662)

222,566,241

21,179,570

16,667,469

(2,763,000)

1,537,300

(7,027,669)

(5,194,168)

198,679,485

17,898,000

54,045,718

(30,000)

7,907,645
(7,942,080)

6,500

8
See notes to consolidated financial statements.

(38,381,714) (55,003,446)



FIRST COMMAND FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CoNSoLIDATEDSTATEMENTSoFCASHFLoWS(GoNTINUED)

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2015

2017 2016

FINAI.I CIN G ACTIVITI ES

Net change in Federal Home Loan Bank advances

Net change in bank dePosits

Dividends paid

Payments of notes PaYable

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

CASH At.lD CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year

CASH At'lD CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year

Cash and cash equivalents

Bankcash and due from banks

CASH At.lD CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year

SUPPLEMENTAL DISC LOSU RES

OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

lnterest paid, net of capitalized interest

lncome taxes paid

$ 68,668,782 g 44,414,342

-

10,143,702 12,223,361

58,525.080 32,190.981

$ 782 $ 44,414,y2

$ 20,000,000

24,252,956

(2,014,041)

$ (30,900,000)

30,804,221

(2,452,170)

.353)(3,010.182) 002

733 (

24,254,M0

44,414,U2

(36,617,702)

91,032,044

$ 987,537 $

363,996

1,016,509

364,359

ISee notes to consolidated financial statements.



FIRST COMMAND FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

First Command Financial Services, lnc. and subsidiaries (FCFS or the Company) was
chartered in Texas in December 1980. The Company began operations in March 1981 as the
continuation of a business formerly operated as lndependent Research Agency for Life
lnsurance, lnc. (lRA), a Texas partnership. On December 22,2000, IRA was renamed First
Command Financial Services, lnc.

FCFS is a financial services holding company and owns 100% of First Command lnsurance
Services, lnc. (FCIS), a general insurance agency; First Command Financial Planning, lnc.
(FCFP) (formerly United Services Planning Association, lnc.), a licensed, fully disclosed
broker-dealer registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and Financial
lndustry Regulatory Authori$ (FINRA); First Command Advisory Services, Inc. (FCAS), a
registered investment advisor with the SEC; First Command Bank (FCB or the Bank), a
Federal Savings Bank; First Command Life lnsurance Company (FCLIC), a stock reserve life
insurance company; First Command Europe, Ltd. (FCEL), an insurance and investments
company operating in the United Kingdom and Germany; and First Command Financial
Services, lnc. - Montana (FCFS-Montana), a general insurance agency licensed in the state
of Montana.

Effective October 1,2015, FCFP was restructured into two separate corporate operations.
FCFP continues as a mutualfund broker/dealer and will expand its brokerage operations over
time. The investment advisory services were transferred to First Command Advisory Services,
a new subsidiary of FCFS.

FCIS and FCFS-Montana are engaged in the sale of life, annuities, long-term care, disability,
and property/casualty insurance. FCFP is engaged in the sale of mutual funds and other
variable investment products. FCAS is engaged in asset management and financial planning
services. The Company shares common employees, sales advisors and representatives, and
office facilities with its subsidiaries. The Bank offers a variety of personal and commercial
banking products and services that integrate our comprehensive financial solutions for
individuals and businesses. The Company's target market is middle income American families
with a concentration to United States professional military personnel. Corporate and banking
offices are located in Fort Worth, Texas. The Company's advisors and representatives
maintain offices in approximately 169 cities located in 43 states, one U.S. territory, and two
foreign countries.

As discussed in Note 13, 10Qo/o of the Company's outstanding common stock is owned by the
First Command Financial Planning, lnc. Employee Stock Ownership Plan Trust.

We have evaluated subsequent events after the balance sheet date of September 30,2017
through December 8,2017, which is the date the consolidated financial statements were
available to be issued.
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FIRST COMMAND FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO GONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of FCFS and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated
in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements
and accompanying notes. Significant estimates include the fair value of marketable
securities and investments, allowance for loan losses, deferred acquisition costs, and
reserves for future policy benefits. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Recognition of Commissions and Fee Revenue and Gommission and Advisor
Expenses

Commissions revenue on sales of insurance policies and mutualfund investments by the
Company's sales advisors is recognized when earned from the insurance and mutualfund
companies. Commissions are generally paid to the Company as they are earned on
investments made or the premium-payment period by the individual investors and
policyholders to the mutualfund and insurance companies.

Asset management revenue is recognized by the Company when earned and is based
upon the market value of individual investor assets under management calculated on a
quarterly basis.

Financial planning revenue is recognized when services are provided to individual client
families for family financial plans and ongoing service.

Other service fee income is recognized as earned and includes revenue sharing,
investors' individual retirement account custodial fees, sub-transfer agency fees, tax return
preparation fees, and FCLIC premium income.

Commissions and advisor expenses are recognized as the Company earns the respective
commission and fee revenue.

Based on historical collections, no allowance is deemed necessary on commissions and
fee receivables.

11



FIRST COMMAND FTNANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFTCANT AGCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable include bond interest income, fees from investors' individual

retirement custodial accounts, advisor receivables and other. Advisor receivables include

chargebacks for certain commissions and incentives. Based on historical collections, an

allor,vance is only deemed necessary on advisor receivables. This allowance is based on

the age of the receivable, advisor termination date, and collectability of the receivable.

Advisor Advanced Commissions

ln 2013, FCIS began advancing approximately nine months of commissions to advisors

for certain life insulance sales. ihe amount advanced is treated as a prepaid expense (an

asset) and amortized to commission expense as the policy matures over its first year' lf

the insurance policy cancels during the first nine months, the unamortized amount

advanced is recorded as a receivable from the advisor. FCIS records an allowance on

these receivables based on persistency of insurance policies, advisor force retention, and

collectability of these advisor receivables.

From October 2015 through April2017, FCFP began advancing approximately 66 months

of commissions to advisors foi certain mutualfund sales. The amount advanced is treated

as a prepaid expense (an asset) and amortized to commission expense as commission

revenue is earned on fuiure client investment payments over the 66 months. lf the account

cancels or periodic investments cease during the 66 months, the unamortized amount

advanced is recorded as a receivable from the advisor. FCFP records an allowance on

these receivables based on persistency of mutual fund accounts, advisor force retention

and collectability of these advisor receivables.

Marketable Securities and Bank lnvestments

The Company classifies investments into one of three categories: held-to-maturity, trading

or available-for-sale. Debt securities that the Company has the positive intent and ability

to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity and recorded at cost, adjusted for the

amortization of premiums and the accretion of discounts.

The Company classifies securities owned by FCFP as trading in accordance with industry

standards for broker-dealers. Additionally, the Company has classified certain

investments as trading that have been designated to support deferred compensation

liabilities discussed ln the Deferred Career Compensation Plan and Mission

Accomplishment Plan captions below. lnvestments classified as trading are carried at fair

value with changes in unrealized gains and losses recorded in trading gains and losses

within current year oPerations.
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FIRST COMMAND FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO GONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Marketable Securities and Bank lnvestments - Continued

lnvestment securities that are not classified as held-to-maturity or trading are classified as
available for sale. lnvestments classified as available for sale are carried at fair value with
unrealized gains and losses, net of deferred taxes, recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income. Premiums are amortized into interest income using the interest
method to the earlier of maturity or call date. Discounts are accreted into interest income
using the interest method over the period to maturity.

The Company's portfolio of heldto-maturity and available-for-sale securities fluctuates in
value based on interest rates in financial markets and other economic factors. These
fluctuations caused by market changes have little bearing on whether or not the
investment will ultimately be recoverable. Therefore, the Company considers these
declines in value as temporary even in periods exceeding one year. ln certain
circumstances, however, it may become apparent that the principal of an investment may
not be recoverable, generally due to factors specific to an individual issuer and not market
interest rates. ln this event, the Company classifies such investments as other-than
temporarily impaired and writes the investment down to fair value, realizing an investment
loss. The determination that a security is other-than-temporarily impaired is highly
subjective and involves the careful consideration of many factors. These factors include:
default on a payment, issuer has declared bankruptcy, severe deterioration in market
value, deterioration in credit quality as indicated by credit ratings, issuer having serious
financial difficulties as reported in the media, news releases by issuer, and information
disseminated through the investment community. While all available information is taken
into account, it is difficult to predict the amount of a distressed or impaired security that
will ultimately be recoverable.

Realized gains and losses are included in operations, and are determined by using an
average cost basis for investments in mutual funds and on a specific identification basis
for all other investments. Dividends and capital gains from mutual fund investments are
included in investment income and recorded as declared. lnterest income is also included
in investment income and recorded as earned.

Concentration of Gredit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject FCFS to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of temporary cash investments, commissions receivable, other receivables,
marketable securities, and loans to military-related personnel. FCB commercial loans are
concentrated in the dental and veterinarian industries. FCFS places its temporary cash
investments and marketable securities with financial institutions and investment
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FTRST COMMAND FINANCTAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFIGANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Concentration of Credit Risk (continued)

companies. Therefore, the majority of these funds are not insured by the Federal Deposit

lnsurance Corporation. Concentritions of credit risk with respect to commissions and

other receivabl'es are limited due to the number of investment and insurance companies

comprising FCFS' supplier base. Loans to military-related personnel are^ primarily

consumeiloans with an average balance of approximalely $22,230 per loan at September
gO,2017 and $21,654 at September 30, 2106. There is no concentration of credit risk to

a specific commercial loan borrower since the greatest exposure to a single borrower is

$2.4 million.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents

include cash, money market accounts and the Bank's cash and due from banks.

Property, EquiPment, and Software

property, equipment, and software are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and

arortiration. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method

over the following estimated useful lives:

Office buildings and improvements
Office equipment, furniture, automobiles and software

Expenditures for maintenance, repairs, and minor renewals are charged to operations as

incurred.

Bank Loans and the Allowance for Loan Losses

Loans are stated at their unpaid principal balances, less the allowance for loan losses.

lnterest on loans is recognized over the term of the loan and is calculated using the interest

method on principal amounts outstanding. The Company capitalizes loan origination costs

and amortizes these costs as an adjustment to yield over the estimated life of the loan.

The allowance for loan losses is a valuation allowance for losses on loans and binding

commitments. The allowance is established through a provision for loan losses charged

against income. Loans which management believes are uncollectible are charged against

ttie allowance, with subsequent recoveries, if any, credited to the allowance. The

allowance for loan losses and related provision are determined based on the historical

credit loss experience, changes in the loan portfolio, including size, mix and risk of the

individual loans, and current economic conditions. The allowance for loan losses is

maintained at a level which, in management's judgment, is adequate to absorb credit

losses inherent in the loan portfolio as of the balance sheet date.

7-40 years
3-10 years
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FIRST COMMAND FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES.
CONTINUED

Bank Loans and the Allowance for Loan Losses - Continued

The consumer loan portfolio consists of loan and credit card balances of advisor referred
clients. The majority of these loans are to individuals and small businesses and are
segregated into homogenous pools. Homogeneous loans are those that are considered to
have common characteristics that provide for evaluation on an aggregate pool basis.
Management determines the allowance for consumer and small business loans based on
models which evaluate the average loan balances in each aging category and recent
performance trends. The model forecasts the monthly progression of loans and charge-
offs in each aging category using a rolling historical migration of loans, past due history and
expected charge-offs. Management also evaluates the collectability of the loan portfolio,
including the nature of the portfolio, credit concentrations, economic conditions, and other
risks inherent in the portfolio at the balance sheet date.

Commercial loans and real estate loans are evaluated annually for impairment on an
individual basis. A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and
events, it is probable that the Bank will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of
principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement.
Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status,
collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments
when due. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment
shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances
surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for
the delay, the borrower's prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation
to principal and interest owed. lmpairment is measured on a loan by loan basis by either
the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective interest
rate, the loan's obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral. For commercial
loans and real estate loans that are not considered impaired, a general reserve is
established based on general economic conditions, recent trends in losses, concentrations
of credit, trends in delinquencies, the level of troubled debt restructurings and the effect of
externalfactor:s such as competition and regulatory requirements.

Loans are considered past due if the required principal and interest payments have not
been received as of the date such payments were due based on the contractual terms of
the loan. Commercial loans are placed on non-accrual status when, in management's
opinion, the borrower may be unable to meet payment obligations as they become due, as
well as when required by regulatory provisions. Loans may be placed on non-accrual status
regardless of whether or not such loans are eonsidered past due. When interest accrual is
discontinued, all unpaid accrued interest is reversed through income. lnterest income is
subsequently recognized only to the extent cash payments are received in excess of
principal due. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest
amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are reasonably
assured. Consumer loans are not placed on non-accrual but are charged-off once the loan
reaches 120 days past due, with the exception of credit card loans which are charged-off
once the loan reaches 180 days past due.
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FIRST COMMAND FINANCIAL SERVICES, tNC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NoTESTocoNsoLIDATEDFINANGIALSTATEMENTS

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Mission Accom Plishment Plan

During 1ggg, the Company's Board of Directors (FCFS Board) authorized a compensation

progrim calied the Mission Accomplishment Plan lltttlpl The plan-is de^signed to allolt

certain advisors and key employees to participate in the earnings of the Company' MAP

participation is awardedpursuant to a policy based on merit and services provided that is

idapted from time to time by the FCFS Board'

The company establishes an aggregate MAP award pool on an-a11yal basis, which is

divided into a Current Award poot (Cnp), Deferred Award Pool (DAP), and Note Award

pool (NAp). in" CAp, DAp, and NAP award pools are allocated to participants based on

outstanding MAp poinis, and are charged to Mission Accomplishment Plan expense in the

year of tnl grani. MAp participantl are awarded MAP points based on individual

performanc".in" amount of fUnp points and the MAP award pools will vary as determined

by the Company in its sole discretion.

The CAp allocation is generally paid in cash, while the DAP allocation is credited to a

deferred compensation-book account for each participant. Amounts credited to the DAP

are generally'payable to the participantfollowing their termination from the Company or

upon the ,ririiti of the DAP t'en yeirs after its grant, whichever is earlier. The Note Award

plan (NAp) was a new addition in 2016 to the Mission Accomplishment Plan. The notes

issued on septemo er 30, 2017 and 201 6 have a definite 1 0-year term with no acceleration

of payment allowed. Due to the defined term, the notes qualify as an issuance of

subordinated debt and will be counted as part of regulatory total capital. The notes are

zero coupon notes that will be discounted each year at a market rate of interest for similar

10 year debt issuances. The NAP award is also bredited to a deferred compensation book

account for each participant and will be payable 10 years from the date of issuance.

As of January 1, 2005, the MAP was amended to allow participants to defer CAP and DAP

payment amlunts when due into the MAP Elective DeferralAccount (EDA). Participants

bbcting to defer amounts in the EDA select mutual funds in which to invest their deferrals

and receive the value of the mutual funds selected at the end of the term. The Company

purchases shares in mutual fund companies to economically hedge against the EDA. The

LOA grants are compensatory, and the participants accept allthe market value risk. Each

deferral into the EOA nas s 5-year term, and participants may not exercise until maturity.

The Company records compensation expense in c_ommission and advisor expenses for

any increase or decrease in EDA due to market fluctuations. The Company classifies

investments designated to these plans as trading and records an increase or decrease to

trading gains and-losses according to changes in fair value. Thus, there is no net income

effectiue to the offsetting nature of these transactions'
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FIRST COMMAND FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Mission Accomplishment Plan - Continued

MAP participants have no voting rights with regard to-the Company, and the MAP does

not confer any rights as a sharefiold'er to such holder. Deferred compensation in the MAP

may not Oe translferred, pledged, assigned, or otherwise encumbered by a participant and

is subject to immediate forfeiture if, among other things, the participant is found to have

engaged in conduct inimical to the best interests of the company'

lnvestments designated to support EDA remain available for use by the Company in its

general operationl, if needed, and remain at risk to the participants during any downturn

in the operating results of the Company.

Deferred Gareer Commission Plan Payable

During the year ended September 30, 1993, the Company established a Deferred Career

Commission plan (Docpifor the benefit of its sales advisors. This is a nonqualified plan

under which commissions are contributed by the Company for its sales advisors until their

business relationship with the Company teiminates. The sales advisors receive no paid

commissions under this plan prior to their termination date.

The contributions to the plan are allocated to the individual advisors in the DCCP based

on a pooled point system. Management invests the contributions based on its sole

discretion, at tire risk of tne ptan participants, and each year fluctuatio.ns in the market will

affect the value of the selecied investments. An account is maintained for each participant

for the purpose of recording the current value of his or her commissions, including earnings

credited thereto. The part'icipant's account is adjusted annually to reflect earnings and

losses.

points are awarded to advisors only in years when the company contributes to the DCCP,

based on a defined formula using advisor production and longevity. The amount and

frequency of contributions to the DCCP are at the sole discretion of the Company.

The Company records compensation expense in commission and advisor expenses for

,ny in.r"ire or decrease in DCCP due to market fluctuations. The Company classifies

investments designated to DCCP as trading and records an increase or decrease to

trading gains and'iosses for changes in fair value. Thus, there is no net income effect due

to the offsetting nature of these transactions.

lnvestments designated to support DCCP remain available for use by the Company in its

general operationl, if needed, and remain at risk to the participants during any downturn

in the operating results of the company'
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FIRST COMMAND FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. ORGANTZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Advance Gommissions PaYable

Advance commissions payable represent payments for first year commissions received

from insurance companies that FCIS represents as general agent. The commission

revenue is earned overthe premium-payment period of the policies sold by FCIS- Advance

commissions are adjusted' monthly and are calculated to be equal to the difference

between the total ambunt of first year commissions on certain insurance policies sold by

FCIS and the amount of the first year commissions earned by FCIS on the policies.

lncome Taxes

Since December 1, 1998, the Company has been a Subchapter S corporation for federal

income tax purposes. A Subchapter S corporation generally pays !o federal income taxes,

and its taxa'ble'income, if any, is taxed at the stockholder level. FCLIC is not eligible to be

a Subchapter S corporation. As a result, FCLIC pays corporate federal income taxes which

are accrued to the provision for income taxes. FCEL pays corporate taxes in the United

Kingdom, which are accrued to the provision for income taxes'

The Company's provision for income taxes is based on income before income taxes

adjusted ior permanent differences between financial reporting and taxable income'

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined using the liability (or balance sheet)

method. Under this method, the net deferred tax asset or liability is determined based on

the tax effects of the temporary differences between the book and tax basis of the various

balance sheet assets and liabilities and gives current recognition to changes in tax rates

and laws. FCFS files a consolidated tax return that includes allsubsidiaries except FCLIC

and FCEL. FCFS' sub-chapter S election combined with the ESOP ownership allows

taxable income to be deferred until the ESOP participants take distributions from their

retirement account.

Tax positions related to the Company's tax status and federal and state requirements have

been reviewed, and management is of the opinion that material positions taken by the

Company wouid more likely than not be sustained by examination. Accordingly, the

Combany has not recorded an income tax liability for uncertain tax benefits.

Life lnsurance Operations

FCLIC's principal business activity is the assumption of premiums and benefits associated

with certain life insurance policies. FCIS sells life insurance policies through an agency

agreement, and the Company in turn assumes a portion of those policies.
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FIRST COMMAND FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES .
CONTINUED

Life lnsurance Operations - Gontinued

Premiums for life insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the
premium-payment period of the policies. The costs of acquiring new business are
generally deferred and recorded as deferred acquisition costs, and are amortized in a
systematic manner, which matches these costs with the associated revenues. The liability
for future policy benefits for life insurance products is provided on the net level premium
method based on estimated investment yields, mortality, morbidity, persistency, and other
assumptions which were appropriate at the time the policies were issued. Assumptions
used are based on the underwriter's experience with similar products. These estimates
are periodically reviewed and compared with actualexperience.

The Company accounts for premium income and operating expenses from FCLIC
operations within other service fee income and general and administrative expenses,
respectively. FCLIC premium income and operating expenses for the year ended
September 30, 2017 were $2,357,271 and $2,742,613 respectively, and for the year
September 30, 2016, were $2,412,265 and $2,634,263, respectively.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the fiscal 2016 financial statements and notes
to conform to the fiscal 2017 presentation.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Revenue Recognition - The FASB has issued new guidance regarding the recognition of
revenue. The core principle of the guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects in exchange for the those goods or services.
Management is evaluating the new rule and the impact has not been determined. The
guidance also includes new extensive disclosure requirements for revenue recognition.
The new rule will be effective in fiscal year 2019.

Financial Assefs and Financial Liabilities - The FASB has issued new guidance regarding
the recognition and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities. The guidance
requires equity investments to be measured at fair value and the changes in fair value to
be recognized in the income statement. Unrealized gains and losses on the equity
investments of FCFS and FCB will be recorded in the income statement instead of the
current recognition in other comprehensive income. The Company's total capital will not
be impacted by this change. The guidance also eliminates the disclosure requirement for
fair value of held-to-maturity securities for non-public entities. The new rule will be effective
in fiscal year 2020.
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FTRST COMMAND FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Recent Accounting Pronouncements - Continued

Leases - The FASB has issued new guidance regarding lessee accounting for recording
lease assets and liabilities on the balance sheet. Lessor accounting is largely unchanged.
The guidance also requires key lease disclosures. Management is evaluating the new rule

and the impact has not been determined. The new rule will be effective in fiscal year 2020.

Current Expected Credit Losses - The FASB has issued new guidance regarding
accounting for loan loss reserves and credit losses of available for sale debt securities.
This new pronouncement requires financial institutions to use historical credit loss
experience on flnancial assets with similar risk characteristics and estimate credit losses
over the contractual term of the asset. The new guidance will impact the Bank's accounting
for loan loss reserve and all entities' debt securities carried as available for sale. The new
rule will be effective in fiscal year 2022 and management is evaluating the impact the new

standard will have on the ComPanY.

NOTE 2. MARKETABLE SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT INCOME

Marketable securities classified as trading consist of investments in actively traded mutual
funds and investments in United States government sponsored agency securities. The
aggregate cost and fair value of trading securities as of September 30, 2017 and 2016, are
as follows:

2017 2016

Trading securities, at cost
Unrealized gains, net

$ 27,859,880
4,424,760

$24,797,637
867 3321

Trading securities, at fair value $ 32,2U,640 $ 26. 969

During the years ended September 30,2017 and 2016, net unrealized gains on marketable
securities classified as trading of $2,557,428 and $561,862, respectively, are included in

trading gains in the consolidated statements of operations. Of the net unrealized gains that
arose during 2017 and 2016, $2,557,428 and $558,273 related to securities held at
September 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. There were no transfers between securities
classified as trading, available-for-sale, or held to maturity during tiscal2017 and 2016.

The following is a summary of marketable securities classified as available-for-sale at
September 30,2017 and 2016:
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2. MARKETABLE SECURTTIES AND INVESTMENT INCOME. CONTINUED

Amortized
Cost

Gross

Unrealized
Gains

Gross

Unrealized
Losses

Estimated
Fair

Value2017

Bonds
Debt securities issued bY

the U.S. government or
sponsored agencies

Agency notes
Collaterized mortgage

obligations
States, municipalities, and

political subdivisions
Trust Preferred
Corporate debt securities
Asset-backed securities

Total bonds

Equities
Mutual funds

$ 296,380 $

5,960,879

5,942,992
1,288,434

99,374,214

206,731

(274) $

(23,367)

(5,555)

(314,381)

296,106

6,144,243

6,277,312
1,444,695

101,676,893
88.364

$

5s.717

339,875
156,261

2,617,060
32,647

113,018,616 3,352,574 (343,577) 116,027,613

39,100,650

39,100,q50

1,213,481 55.833) 40,158,298

Total equities

Total ariai labl e-for-s ale s 152. 19 26,6, $ 4,566,055 $ (499,410) $ 156. 85C11

481 (155,833) 40,158,298

Amortized
Cost

Gross

Unrealized
Gains

Gross

Unrealized

Estimated
Fair

ValueLos ses2016

Bonds
Debt securities issued bY

the U.S. government or
sponsored agencies

Agency notes
Collaterized mortgage

obligations
States, municipalities, and

political subdivisions
Trust Preferred
Corporate debt securities
Asset-backed securities

Total bonds

Equities
Mutual funds

Total equities

$ 297,639 $ 3,055 $

5,955,815 554,864

5,514,184
1,658,034

92,035,673
156,071

549,122
246,119

3,134,774

(13,157)
(182,327)

$ 300,694

6,510,679

6,063,306
't,890,996

94,988,120
't79.206135

36,080,307

105,617,416 4,511,069

36,080,307

(195,484) 109,933,001

34,988,211449,460 (1,541,556)

449.460 (1,541,556) 34,988 .211

Total avai Iable-for-sale s 141. 723

21

$ 4,960,529 $ (1. 737 040\ $ 144.921.212



FIRST COMMAND FINANCIAL SERVICES, !NC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2. MARKETABLE SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT INCOME - CONTINUED

The net unrealized gains (losses) of marketable securities and Bank investments classified
as available-for-sale, net of tax, are included as a separate component of stockholder's equity
as of September 30, 2017 and 2016, as follows:

2017 2016
Net unrealized gains on marketable securities

class ified as available-for-sale
Net unrealized (losses) gains on bank investments

classified as available-for-sale (Note 3)

Tax effect of net unrealized gains on FCLIC

investments reflected in deferred taxes

$ 4,066,M5 $ 3,223,489

(172,011) 233,203

(1,037,996) (1,414,101\

Net unrealized gains included in

accumulated other comprehensive income $ 2,956,639 $ 2,042,591

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of bonds and preferred stock classified as
available-for-sale at September 30,2017 , by contractual maturity, are as follows:

Amortized
Cost

Estimated
Fair Value

Due in one year or less
Due from one to five years

Due from five to ten years

Due after ten years

Asset-backed securities

$ 15,001,&16

62,181,038
4,454,740

31,225,275

$ 15,023,104
62J53,753
4,736,765

33,925,627
188,364155 717

Total $ '113,018,616 $ 116,027,613

Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because issuers have the right to
call or prepay obligations.

The Company's marketable securities classified as available-for-sale that have been in a
continuous unrealized loss position for less than 12 months and those that have been in a
continuous unrealized loss position for 12 or more months as of September 30, 2017 and
September 30, 2016, are as follows:
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NOTE 2. MARKETABLE SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT INCOME - CONTINUED

Less than 12 Months '12 Months or Lonoer Total

Fair

Value

Unrealized

Loss

Fair

Value

Unrealized

Loss

Fair Unrealized

N17

Bonds

Agency notes

Collaterized mortgage

obligations

States, municipal, and

political subditisions

Corporate debt securities

Total bonds

Equities

Mutualfunds

Total equlties

Total

2016

Bonds

Equities

Mutualfunds

$ 2e6,1m $ Q74) $

Value Loss

$ $ 2e6,1m $ Q74)

1,047,841 (23,367)1,047,U1 (23,367)

451,942

3M.M8

(5,555) 451,942

31, (134,767) 10,838,714 (179,6'14) 42,202,762

(s,555)

(31 4,381)

33,159,937 (163,963) 10,838,714 (179,614) 43,998,651 (343,577)

5,329,086 (18,722\ 6,936,863 (137,111) 949 (155,83Q)

5,329,086 (18,722) 6,936,863 (137,111) 12,265,949 (1 55,833)

$ 38,489,023 $ (182,68$ $ 17,775,577 $ (316,725)

-:-

$ 56,264,600 $ (199,4t0)

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Lonqer Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair

Value Loss Value Loss Value

Unrealized

Loss

Agencynotes $ $ $ $ $

Collatedzed mortgage

obligations

States, municipal, and

political subditisions

Corporate debt securities 9,241,827 (36,062) 13,609,903 (159,422) 22,851'730

$

(195,484)

Total bonds 9,241,827 (36,062) 13,609,903 (159,4221 22,851,730 (195,484)

4,394,580 (62,856) 16,941,255 (1,478,700) 21,335,835 (1,541,5s6)

4,394.580 (62,856) 16,941,255 (1,478,700) 21,335,835 (1,541,556)

$ (98,918) $ 30,551,158 $ (1,638,122) $ 44,187,565::::Total

Totalquities

$ 13,636,407
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FIRST GOMMAND FINANCIAL SERVICES, !NC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2. MARKETABLE SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT INCOME. CONTINUED

At September 30, 2017, there were forty-seven securities in an unrealized loss position for
less than twelve months. Additionally, twenty-two securities had been in an unrealized loss
position twelve months or longer at September 30, 2017. fhe Company's entire marketable
securities portfolio classified as available-for-sale consisted of 301 issues at September 30,
2017.

At September 30, 2016, there were fourteen securities in an unrealized loss position for less
than twelve months. Additionally, forty seven securities had been in an unrealized loss position
twelve months or longer at September 30, 2016. The Company's entire marketable securities
portfolio classified as available-for-sale consisted of 286 issues at September 30, 2016.

The change in the loss positions in fixed maturity instruments are primarily due to changes in
interest rates since the date of purchase of the security. The Company does not intend to sell
the securities and it is not likely that it will be required to do so before recovery of the amortized
cost basis. The Company does not consider these investments to be other-than{emporarily
impaired at September 30, 2017 and 2016. During 2017 and 2016, there were no securities
that met the other-than-temporarily impaired criteria and no write-downs were recorded.

Proceeds from maturities, calls and sales of marketable securities available-for-sale were
$54,045,718 in fiscal 2017. Gross gains and gross losses realized on those sales were
$1,642,053 and $(57), respectively. Proceeds from sales of marketable securities classified
as trading were $3,778,746 in fiscal 2017. Gross gains and gross losses realized on those
sales were $287,159 and $(2,262), respectively.

Proceeds from maturities, calls and sales of marketable securities available-for-sale were
$'16,667,469 in fiscal 2016. Gross gains and gross losses realized on those sales were
$126,172 and $(2,095,877), respectively. Proceeds from sales of marketable securities
classified as trading were $3,760,274 in fiscal 2016. Gross gains and gross losses realized
on those sales were $284,937 and $(15,153), respectively^

lnvestment income for the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, is summarized as
follows:

2017 2016

Bonds
Equities
Cash and cash equivalents

Total investment income

$ 2,979,144
2,573,223

204,816

$ 2,654,791
2,941,609

63,967
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FIRST COMMAND FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3. BANK INVESTMENTS

The foltowing is a summary of Bank investments at September 30, 2017 and 2016:

Amortized

$ 115,372,515 $ 22,925 $ (792,388) $ 114,602,952

Cost

Gross

Unrealized

Gains

Gross Estimated

Unrealized Fair

Losses Value2017

Held-to-m atu rity-debt s ecu rities

issued bythe U.S. government

or sponsored agencies

Agency notes

Collateralized mortgage

obligations

lvlortgage-backed s ecu rities

Total

Other asset-backed securities

Collateralized loan

obligations

Total heldto-maturity

Arailable-for-sale

Corporate debt securities

Mutualfunds

Total awi lablefor-sale

Total

170,611,342

11,730,006

297,713,863

(2,196,314)

(45,690)

168,668,523

12,010,923

253,495

326,607

602,927 (3,034,392) 295,282,398

25,U5,021 120 (86,463) 25,311,678

323,058,8M 656,047 (3,120,855) 320,594,076

79,479,M5 62,U9 78,390,277

5,916,3576, 000,000

u,478,645 62,349 (234,360) 84,306,634

$ 407,537,529 $ 718,396 $ (3,355,215) $ 404,900,710

(150,717)

(83,643)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3. BANK INVESTMENTS . CONTINUED

Amortized

Cost

Gross

Unrealized

Gains

Gross

Unrealized

Losses

Estimated

Fair

2016

Held-to-m atu rity-debt s ecu rities

issued bythe U.S. government

or sponsored agencies

Agency notes

Collateral ized m ortg age

obligations

Ivlortgage-backed s ecu rities

Total

Other asset-backed securities

Collateralized loan

obligations

Total held-tomaturity

Arailable-for-sale

Corporate debt securities

Mutual funds

Value

$ 96,208,824 $ 305,920 $ (70,001) $ 96,444,743

150,797,392

15,714,013

933,1 76

495,944

(696,694)

(47,056)

151,033,874

16,162,901

262,720,229 1,735,040 (813,751) 263,&{1,518

29,986,879 16,203 ('130,499) 29,872,583

292,707,108 1,751,243 (9M,250) 293,514,',t01

80,836,875

6,000,000

215,260

66,915

(48,972) 81,003,163

6,066,915

Total avai labl+for-s ale 86,836,875 282 175 (48,972) 87 070 078

Total $ 379,543,983 $ 2,033,418 $ (993,222) $ 380,584,179

Debt securities issued by the U.S. government include agency notes, collateralized mortgage
obligations, and hybrid adjustable-rate mortgage securities. Management believes these
securities bear little or no credit risk. The Bank has no private label mortgage-backed
securities. The Bank invests in AA and A rated collateralized loan obligations ("CLOs"). The
CLOs consist of a diversified portfolio of broadly syndicated loans and do not have direct
exposure to real estate, mortgages, sub-prime debt, or consumer based debt.
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NOTE 3. BANK INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of Bank investments in debt securities at

September 30,2017 , by contractual maturity, are as follows:

Availabl+for-Sale

Amortized

Cost

Estimated

FairValue

Amortized

Cost

Estimated

FairValue

Due in one year or less

Due from one to

llve years

Due from five to

ten years

Due after ten years

Collateralized loan

obligations

Collateralized mortgage

obligations

lvlortgag+backed securities

$ 7,007,735 $ 7,011,491 $31,540,818 $ 31,554,773

18,847,813 18,842,955 46,937,827 46,835,504

51,103,348

38,413,619

25,U5,021

170,611,342

11 730 006

50,759,454

37,989,052

25,311,678

168,668,523

12,010,923

Total $ 323,058,884 s 320.594,076 $78,478,U5

--

$78, 390,277

Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because issuers have the right to

.rll or prepay obligations. Collateralized loan obligations, collateralized mortgage obligations

anO mbrtgage-UaJfeO securities (adjustable-rate) are shown separately since they are not

due at a single maturitY date.

There were no sales of Bank investments during fiscal 2017. There were three corporate debt

securities sold during fiscal 2016 with a carrying amount totaling $6,607,400 for a gain of

$830. These bonds fuere sold because two firms merged, creating a concentration conflict

versus policy limits. The sale corrected this situation.

The Bank's investments that have been in a continuous unrealized loss position for less than

12 months and those that have been in a continuous unrealized loss positiontor 12 or more

months as of September 30, 2017 and 2O16, are as follows:
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NOTE 3. BANK INVESTMENTS. CONTINUED

Less than 12 ltilonths 12 t\Ionths or Longer Total

2017
Held-to-m aturitrdebt s ecurities

issued byhe U.S. go\ernment

or sponsored agencies
Agency notes

Collateralized m ortgage

obligations
t\ilo rtga ge-backed s ecu rities

Total

Other asselbacked securities

Collateralized loan

obligations

Total held-to-m aturity

Arailable-for-sale

Corporate debt securities

Mutral funds

Total ami lable-for-s ale

Total

2016
Held{o-m aturitfdebt securities

issued byfie U.S. government

or sponsored agencies
Agency notes

Col lateralized m ortgage

obligations
lVlortgage-backed s ecu rities

Total

Other asset-backed securities
Collateralized loan

obligations

Total held{o-maturity

Avallable-for-s ale
Corporale debt securities

Mutual funds

Total a\lailable-icr-s ale

Total

Estimated
FairValue

Unrealized

Loss

(801,41 5)

(3,632)

(1,242,317)

Estimated
FairValue

Unrealized

Loss
Estimated
FairValue

Unrealized

Loss

$ 73,0e2,28e $ (437,270) $ 'r 9,480,423 $ (3ss,1 18) $ 92,s72,712 $ (792,388)

89,647,350

440,411

60,297,186

1,550,296

(1,394,899)

(42,0s8)

(1,7e2,07s)

149,944,536

1,990,707

(2,1e6,314)

(45,6e0)

(3,034,3e2)163,180,050 81,327,905 244,507,955

14,537.320 (86,463)

(1,328,780)177,717,370

14,537,320

81,327,905 (1,7e2,07s) 259,045,275

16,682,671 (79,131) 39,914,702
5,9 16,357

16,682,671

(86,463)

(3,120,8ss)

23,232,031
5,9't6,357

29,148,388

$ 206,865,758

(71,s86)

(83,643)

(1 s5,22e)

$ (1,484,009)

(7s,131)

$ (1 ,871,206)

45,831,059

(1s0,717)
(83,643)

(234,360)

_$_(3,3ss,215L$ e8,0'10,576 $ 304,876,334

Less than 12 tVlonths 12 lvlonths or Longer Total

Estimated
Fair Value

Unrealiad
Loss

Estimated
FairValue

Unrealiad
Loss

Estimated
FairValue

Unrealized

Loss

(696,694)

(47,056)

$ 22,875,223 $ (67,874) $ 3,043,4e1 $ (2,127) $ 25,918,714 $ (70,001)

42.539.620
307,304

(30s,878)
(517)

(374,26s)

36,905,819

2,194,106

(390,816)

(46,539)

(43e,482)

79,745,439
2,501,410

66,022,147 42,143,416 108,165,563 (813,751)

5.847 ,955 (4,216)

(378,485)

17,333,355 (126,283)

(s65,765)

23,181 ,3 t 1 (1 30,4ss)

(944,250)71 ,870j03 59.476.771 131,346,874

1 1,670,81 5

1 1 ,670,815

(35,000)

(3s,000)

_$ (41X485L

12,229,359

12,229,359

(13,972)

(13,972)

$ (s79,737)

23,900,174

23,900,174

(48,972).

(48,e72)

$ (993,222)$ 83,540,918

28

$ 71,706,130 $ 155,247,048



FIRST COMMAND FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3. BANK INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

At Septemb er 30,2017, the number of securities classified as held-to-maturity in an unrealized

loss position for less than twelve months and for twelve months or longer were sixty-seven

anA inirty-nine, respectively. At September 30,2017 the number of securities classified as

available-for-sale in an uniealized loss position for less than twelve months and for twelve

months or longer were fifteen and eleven, respectively. The Bank's entire investment portfolio

consisted of 207 issues at September 30,2017.

At September 30, 2016, the number of securities classified as held-to-maturi$ in an unrealized

loss position for less than twelve months and for twelve months or longer were twenty four

and twenty eight, respectively. At September 30, 2016 the number of securities classified as

available-ior-Jale in an unrealized loss position for less than twelve months and for twelve

months or longer were eight and seven, respectively. The Bank's entire investment portfolio

consisted of 189 issues at September 30, 2016.

The unrealized losses at September 30, 2017 and 2016 are primarily a result of changes in

interest rates during the respective periods. The contractual terms of the investments do not

permit the issuer to settle ihe securities at a price less than the principal amount of the

investment. The Bank does not intend to sell the securities and it is not likely that it will be

required to do so before recovery of the amortized cost basis. The Bank does not consider

any investments to be otherthan-temporarily impaired at September 30, 2017 and 2016.

The Bank's Trust department is the custodian of certain clients' assets. As of September 30,

2017 and 2016, Bank investments with an amortized cost of $'16,035,743 and $16,136,142,

respectively, were pledged as collateral on Trust held assets.

The Bank has a secured contingency borrowing line with the Federal Home Loan Bank of

Dallas (FHLB) and pledges eligible investment securities as defined in its blanket lien

agreement with the FHLB. As of September 30, 2017 and 2016, Bank investments with an

amortized cost of $304,973,660 and $253,525,180, respectively, were pledged as collateral

on this borrowing line.

The Bank has a secured contingency borrowing line with the Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas.

As of September 30, 2017 and 2016, bank investments with an amortized cost of $10,058,144
and $9,6S5,245, respectively, were pledged as collateral on this borrowing line.
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NOTE 4. BANK LOANS AND COMMITMENTS TO EXTEND CREDIT

Loans as of September 30, 2017 and 2016 consisted of the following

2017 2016

Commercial and industrial
Commercial
Small business

Total commercial and industrial

Realestate
Commercial mortgages
Land
1-4 Family residential mortgages

Total realestate

Open ended consumer loans
Consumer credit cards

Total open ended consumer loans

Consumer and other term loans
Generalconsumer
Auto loans

72,349,029 78,269,664

$ 58,509,364
13,839,665

$ 62,717,354
15,552,310

29,952,199
'l49,go2

26,808,307
202,482
132,922

30,102,101 27,143,711

29,577,134 31,270,752

29,577,',134 31,270,752

142,706,089
2 185 532

146,573,820
2,033,266

Total consumer and other term loans 144,891,621 148,607,086

Total loans $ 276,919,995 $ 285,291,213

Loan Origination and Risk Management - The Bank has certain lending policies and
procedures in place that are designed to maximize loan income within an acceptable level of
risk. Management reviews and approves these policies and procedures on a regular basis. A
reporting system supplements the review process by providing management with frequent
reports related to loan production, loan quality, concentrations of credit, Ioan delinquencies
and non-performing and problem loans. Diversification in the loan portfolio is a means of
managing risk associated with fluctuations in economic conditions.
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NoTE4.BANKLoANSANDCoMMITMENTSToEXTENDGREDIT-CoNTINUED

TheBankutilizesFcFsadvisorsforcustomerreferrals.forcommercialandconsumerloan
transactions. The advisors are notinvir[Jn .nv "r"aitt""irilnr 

or underwriting of the credit'

They either ,"t", i[J p*necior cf ielti"in" f 

"",ilng 
staff oirequest the lending statf to contact

the prospe., or"Iri"it"iii".trv. The advisor may assist in gathering the necessary

documentation n"#Ji'to, ,rnO6*ritiig. li,l," lg,'l iransaction iJfunded' the advisor may

qualify tor a Oanf-JrlJJort tee paiO as a-result of the ctosing' ine typicat borrower referred to

the Bank by the advisor also has prr"nr*J other insurai"" o' financial planning products

from the advisor I.i iriiriJ"tionrnip'iriii G ,oritot has provided for low historical charse-

offs. consurn", ,no small busin"." rorn" generateo.glgtion this channel average $21'298

and are considered one homog"n"or"Jpioi;q;".t,b6!i1ttn" level of loss allowances due

to similar distribution channels, consisient performanc" 'ni 
small average balances'

Commercialandindustrialloansareunderuvrittenafterevaluatingandunderstandingthe
borrower,s ability to operate protitiUfi'lni p*a"ntf, eG"O iti business' The Bank's

manasement exlmines current "tti?*ii:q"t{^t-':I"'io 
determine the abititv of the

borrower to repay their obligations as lgiegO Commerciai'nO inO"trial loans are primarily

made baseO orliffe iOentifi6d casn ttowi of the Uo,row,"i"nJ secondarily on the underlying

collateral provided by the borrower"iii" t"in fftws of borrowers' however' may not be as

expected ano tne cJhbral securing th;""]o;ns may n'"i"t" in value' Most commercial and

industrial loans are secured by th9'"="tt being financed' other business assets such as

mutuar fund hordings or a branket ri# o-.-r"*iri"otes, inventory and equipment' since the

majority ot "o*il"iLiand 
industriaiio"ns *pt":"^llllr*sional practice loans to doctors'

dentists, veterinarians and accountants, tney aiso g"n"ratry in"o'pot"te'a personalguarantee'

However, some short-term loans,"V UL mjde onLn-un"etureO basis' Management monitors

the concentration of credit risk by'prrp"." of toans^ino !i'"t consid.eration to certain

regulations tnat affect these borrow"i, in tn" rist< assessm"ni' t''' monitoring concentrations

in the commercial loan portfolio, tnJ'dan'r''"n'g"t"nt ano their Board have established a

limit for practice acquisition loans oi i7i'i' oitn" eanksialiial and at September 30' 2017

and september 30, 2016 were *"ii ;ifiil inii guioerin".-i[" in"'eased risk in commercial

loans is due to the type of collateraf't"t"i"g t[ese toans' Th" int'"ased risk also derives

from the expectation that comme&il;; generary *irr n" serviced principary from the

operations 
"t 

in" Orri^eis, anO the success oitho"" op""tiont may vary from expectations'

As a result of these additional .o*pf"*iti"t' variables and risks' commercial loans requtre

more thorough ;;il;iting and servicing than other types of roans.

commercial reat estate loans are 9uu,i99!.to 
u.nog,1ryitip standards 

',lqllo9"tses 
similar to

commercial and industrial loans, in aiJition to those oi real estate loans' These loans are

viewed primarily as cash ftow-loans 
'nJ"""onOarily-as 

io'nt t"t"ed by realestate and are

typically r*o,iifi or", " 
rs to id'vlrip"tioo bo""t"i"l real estate lending typicalty

involves higher loan principat amoui]ts and the t"p"y'"ni 9t tfresg p-ans is generally

dependent on the business conouct"o on the property #curing the loan.or on the successful

operation of the property s".uring-th" fo'n" Commercial reil estate loans may be more
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NOTE 4. BANK LOANS AND COMMITMENTS TO EXTEND CREDIT - CONTINUED

adversely affected by conditions in the real estate markets or in the general economy. The
properties securing the Bank's commercial real estate portfolio are diverse in terms of
geographic location with 16% in Florida, 18o/oin Texas, and no other state having more than

10%. This diversity helps reduce the Bank's exposure to adverse economic events that may

affect any single market or industry. ln monitoring concentrations in loans secured by real

estate, the Bank management and their Board have established a limit of 150% of the Bank's

capital and at September 30,2017 and 2016 were well within this guideline. As a general rule,

the Bank avoids financing undesirable special-purpose projects unless undenruriting factors
are present to help mitigate risk. The undenariting analysis includes careful consideration of
the property's operating history, future operating projections, current and projected

occupancy, location and physical condition, credit verification, analysis of global cash flows,

appraisals and a review of the financial condition of the borrower. At September 30, 2017,
approximately 98% of the outstanding principal balance of the Bank's commercial real estate

loans was secured by owner-occupied properties.

The Bank management and board monitor levels of loan concentrations through parameters

established within the loan policy primarily in two areas with respect to commercial loans,

practice acquisition loans and loans secured by real estate with maximum limits established

in relation to total FCB capital. As of September 30,2017 and 2016, the volume of loans in

both areas was well under the established limits.

The Bank originates consumer loans utilizing a computer-based credit scoring analysis to
supplement the underwriting process. Consumer loans made by the Bank include debt

consolidation loans, automobile loans, recreational vehicle loans, boat loans, home

improvement loans, personal loans (collateralized and uncollateralized), and deposit account
collateralized loans largely made to clients of the Company. The terms of these loans typically
range from 12 to 72 months and vary based upon the nature of collateral and size of loan.

The Bank also has a portfolio of open-ended revolving credit card loans most of which are
referred through the advisor network to Company clients. FCB offers credit card products to
FCFS clients, of which 91% of the portfolio is made up of a variable, low rate credit card which

is approved through the same underwriting process as our unsecured loan clients so they look
and perform similarly. The other 9o/o are a fixed mid-rate credit card typically offered to new
credit users or students. Both accounts offer a rewards program where the cardholder can
redeem points for travel or merchandise. Also, both accounts have fees below industry norm.

ln general, consumer loans entail greater risk than real estate secured loans, particularly in
the case of consumer loans that are unsecured or collateralized by rapidly depreciating assets
such as automobiles. ln such cases, any repossessed collateral for a defaulted consumer
loan may not provide an adequate source of repayment for the outstanding loan balance. The
remaining deficiency often does not warrant further substantial collection efforts against the
borrower beyond obtaining a deficiency judgment. ln addition, consumer loan collections are
dependent on the borrower's continuing financial stability, and thus are more likely to be

adversely affected by job loss, divorce, illness or personal bankruptcy. Furthermore, the
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NOTE 4. BANK LOANS AND COMMITMENTS TO EXTEND GREDIT. CONTINUED

Past Due and Non-Accrual Loans

Loans are considered past due if the required principal and interest payments have not
been received as of the date such payment is due. The Bank generally places a loan on
non-accrual status and ceases accruing interest when the payment of principal and
interest is delinquent for 90 days or earlier in some cases, unless the loan is in the process
of collection and the underlying collateral fully supports the carrying value of the loan. As
of September 30, 2017 and 2016 the Bank had $330,505 and $1,166,643, respectively,
of loans on non-accrual.

An age analysis of past due loans, segregated by class of loans, as of September 30,
2017 and 2016 is as follows:

Loans

3G59 Days

Past Due

Loans

60-89 Days

Past Due

Loans

90 Days

or lt4ore

Past Due

Total

Past Due

Loans

Total

LoansLoans

Acrruing

Loans 90 Dap

or ltilore

Past Due

Cunent

2017

Commercial $ 2,205 $ $ $ 2,205 $58,507,159

Small business 13,839,665

Real estate 30,102,101

Consumer credit cards 80,77 4 30,707 59,516 170,997 29,406,13i

Consumerandoher 30,888 46,010 119,887 196,785 144,694,836

$ 58,509,364

13,839,665

30,102,101

29,517iU

144,891,621

59,516

1 19,887

Accruing

Loans 90 Days

or lvlore

Past Due

$

Totalloans $113,867 $ 76,717 $179,403 $369,987 $276,549,898 $ 2i6,91 9,885 $ 179/03

Loans

30-59 Days

Past Due

Loans

60{9 Days

Past Due

Loans

90 Days

orl\rbre

Past Due

Total

Past Due

Loans

Cunent Total

LoansLoans2016

Commercial $ $ $ $ $ 62,717,354

Small business 15,552,310

Realeshte 27,143,711

Consumercreditcards 35,142 16,528 61,582 113,252 31,157,500

Consumerandoher 108,123 12,512 54,288 174,923 148,432,163

$ 62,717,354

15,552,310

27,143,711

31,270,752

148,607,086

$

61,582

54,288

Totalloans _$_113,265_ _q_?gq{_ _j_L!5,879_ _$_288,175_ _q_285!9il{_ _!_285,2e121!_ jJ!E!-
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NOTE 4. BANK LOANS AND COMMITMENTS TO EXTEND CREDIT - CONTINUED

lmpaired Loans

Commercial and real estate loans are considered impaired when, based on current

information and events, it is probable that the Bank will be unable to collect all amounts

due in accordance with the original contractual terms of the loan agreement, including

scheduled principal and interest payments. lf a loan is impaired, a specific valuation

allowance is allocated, if necessary, using one of three methods: (l) the present value of

expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective interest rate, (ll) the fair value

of ine collateral less the estimated sales costs if the loan is a collateral dependent loan or

(lll) an observable market value of the loan. lmpaired loans, or portions thereof, are

inargeO off when deemed uncollectible. lnterest income on impaired loans is recognized

in th5 period collected unless the ultimate collection of principat is considered doubtful.

lmpaired loans as of September 30, 2017 and 2016 are set forth in the following table:

Unpaid

Contractual

Principal

Balance

Remrded

lnlestnent

wih No

Allowance

Recorded

lnwstnent

with

Allowance

Total

Recorded

lnwsfnent

Related

Allowance

Arcrage

Recorded

lnwshent

lnterest

lncome

Remgnired2017

Commercial

Realestate

20,l 6

Commercial

Realestate

$ 330,505 $ $ 330,505 $ 330,505 $ 56,120 $ 356,221 $

Totalloans $ 330,505 $ $ 330,505 $ 330,505 $56,120 $ 356,221 $:--:-::

Unpaid

Contractual

Principal

Balance

Remrded

lnwstnent

wih No

Allowance

Recorded

lnwstnent

with

Allowance

Total

Recorded

lnrcstnent

Related

Allowance

Awrage

Recorded

Inwstment

lnterest

lncome

Recognized

$ 893,607 $ $ 893,607 $ 893,607 $48,268 $ 931,601 $ 5,957

Totalloans $1,166,643 $ 273,036 $ 893,607 $ 1,166,643 $ 48,268 $ 1,206,431 $ 9,031
:-#'-:-:-:
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NOTE 4. BANK LOANS AND COMMITMENTS TO EXTEND CREDIT - CONTINUED

Troubled Debt Restructurings

The restructuring of a loan is considered a "troubled debt restructuring" if both (i) the
borrower is experiencing financial difficulties and (ii) the creditor has granted a concession.
Concessions may include interest rate reductions or below market interest rates, principal
forgiveness, restructuring amortization schedules and other actions intended to minimize
potential losses.

There were three loans, two commercial and industrial loans and one commercial real
estate, identified as troubled debt restructurings as of September 30, 2017, and one of
which was reported as impaired and on nonaccrual for $330,505 as of that date. There
were three loans, two commercial and industrial loans and one commercial real estate,
identified as troubled debt restructurings as of September 30, 2016, and reported as
impaired and on nonaccrual for $1 ,166,643 as of that date. The modifications on all loans
entailed reductions in the interest rate below the current market rate. As of September 30,
2017 and 2016, all loans defined as troubled debt restructuring were performing under
their restructured terms. All of these loans are reviewed on an individual basis and a
specific reserve amount is carried as part of the loan loss reserve balance for each loan.

The modifications during the reported periods for consumer loans related to extending the
amortization periods. As of September 30, 2017, there were 42 restructured consumer
loans totaling $318,592. As of September 30, 2016, there were 53 restructured consumer
loans totaling $425,972. As of September 30,2017 and 2016, all consumer loans defined
as troubled debt restructuring were performing under their restructured terms.

There are no further commitments on commercial and consumer loans identified as
troubled debt restructuring.

Credit Quality lndicators

As part of the on-going monitoring of the credit quality of the Bank's loan portfolio,
management tracks certain credit quality indicators including trends related to (l) the level
of criticized commercial loans, (l l) net charge-offs and (lll) non-performing loans. The Bank
utilizes a risk grading matrix to assign a risk grade to each of its commercial and real
estate loans as a result of the monitoring process employed by the Bank. Commercial and
real estate loans are monitored on an individual basis to evaluate changes in risk rating,
loan covenant compliance and payment history. An annualwritten review is performed for
each loan of $750,000 or more, with the depth of the review varying based on the size,
risk profile and complexity of the loan. Loans are graded on a scale of 4 to 9. A description
of the general characteristics of the risk grades are as follows:

Grade 4 - Pass
Pass assets are well protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligor
(or guarantors, if any) or by the fair value, less cost to acquire and sell, any of the
underlying collateral in a timely manner.

a
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NOTE 4. BANK LOANS AND COMMITMENTS TO EXTEND CREDIT - CONTINUED

Credit Quality lndicators - Continued

Grade 5 - PassMatch
PassMatch is not a regulatory category. These are considered the weakest of the Pass
rated credits with some apparent deterioration that does not yet meet OAEM (Other
Assets Especially Mentioned). Some of the characteristics that might cause
consideration for this classification would include: the borrower's financial condition may
have shown some deterioration, financial projections are not being met, the guarantor's
credit report or financial condition has deteriorated somewhat, chronic but somewhat
immaterial past dues are occurring raising concerns.

Grade 6 - Other Assets Especially Mentioned (OEAM)
A special mention asset has potential weaknesses that deserve management's close
attention. lf left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of
the repayment prospects for the asset or in the institution's credit position at some future
date. Special mention assets are not adversely classified and do not expose an institution
to sufficient risk to warrant adverse classification.

Grade 7 - Substandard
A "substandard" asset is inadequately protected by the current sound worth and paying
capacity of the obligor or by the collateral pledged, if any. Assets so classified must have
a well-defined weakness, or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. They
are characterized by the distinct possibility that the institution will sustain some loss if the
deficiencies are not corrected.

Grade I - Doubtful
An asset classified as "doubtful" has all the weaknesses inherent in one classified
substandard with the added characteristic that the weakness makes collection or
liquidation in full highly questionable and improbable on the basis of currently known
facts, conditions, and values.

Grade 9 - Loss
An asset or portion thereof, classified as "loss" is considered uncollectible and of such
little value that its continuance on the institution's books as an asset, without
establishment of a specific valuation or charge-off, is not warranted. This classification
does not necessarily mean that an asset has no recovery or salvage value; but rather,
there is much doubt about whether, how much, or when the recovery will occur. As such,
it is not practical or desirable to defer the write-off.

a

o

a

a

ln monitoring credit quality trends in the context of assessing the appropriate level of the
allowance for loan losses, we monitor portfolio credit quality by the weighted average risk
grade of each class of commercial loan. lndividual relationship managers review updated
financial information for all pass grade loans to recalculate the risk grade on at least an annual
basis. When a loan has a calculated risk grade of 5, it is still considered a pass grade
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NOTE 4. BANK LOANS AND COMMITMENTS TO EXTEND CREDIT - CONTINUED

Credit Quatity lndicators - Continued

loan; however, it is considered to be on management's "watch list", where a significant risk

moOitying action is anticipated in the near term. When a loan has a calculated risk grade of

O or nigner, a special assets officer monitors the loan on an ongoing basis- The following

table piesents weighted average risk grades for all commercial loans by class, excluding

small.business loans, which are not individually graded.

2017 2016

Weighted
Aterage

Risk Grade Loans

Wdghted
Aterage

Risk Grade Loans

Commercial and lndustrial
Risk Grade 4

Risk Grade 5

Risk Grade 6
Risk Grade 7
Risk Grade 8

Total

Real Estate
Risk Grade 4

Risk Grade 5

Risk Grade 6
Risk Grade 7

Total

4.06 $ 58,509 .364

$ 56,531,753

990,888
656,218

330.505

$ 29,832,146

269,955

4.07 $ 62, 717.354

$ 60,550,027

994,752
278,968
893,607

$ 26,492,176
378,499

4.00

5.00
6.00
7.00
8.00

4.00
5.00
6.00
7.00

4.00
5.00
6.00
7.00
8.00

4.00

5.00
6.00
7.00

The following table presents the weighted average risk grades based on the classifications

above and classified loans (Gradel or 8) by class of loans evaluated on an individual

basis as of September 30, 2017 and 2016.

4.02 $ 30, 102.101

273,036

4.04 $ 27. 143.711

20162017

Weighted

Alerage Risk

Grade

Classified

Loans

Asa%of
Loans

Within

Class

Weighted

Alerage Risk

Grade

Classified

Loans

Asa%of
Loans

Within

CIass

Commercial

Real estate

8.00

0.00

$ 330,505 0.57Yo

0.00%

7.00

7.00

$ 893,607

273,036

1.45o/o

1.03Y0

0.38% 7.00 $ 1,166,643Total 8.00 $ 330,505
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NOTE 4. BANK LOANS AND COMMITMENTS TO EXTEND CREDIT - CONTINUED

Gredit Quality lndicators - Continued

Loan loss reserves for consumer loans are determined through the use of a migration
analysis which measures the level of past dues and previous charge-off history. The
migration analysis monitors the history of past dues and charge-offs over a running period
of 60 months in establishing a basis for the likelihood of future charge-off levels. Consumer
and small business loan credit quality is monitored each month based on the payment
status of the aggregate loans in the portfolio segment. Consumer loans are charged-off
once they reach 120 days past due, with the exception of credit card loans which are
charged-off once the loan reaches 180 days past due.

Net (charge-offs)/recoveries, segregated by class of loans, were as follows:

2017 2016

Commercial
Consumer credit cards
Consumer and other

$ $90,397
(232,587)
(321,493)

51,709
(371,453)
(415,794)

Net charge-offs $ (463,683) $ (735,538)

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is a reserve established through a provision for loan losses
charged to expense, which represents management's best estimate of probable losses
that have been incurred within the existing portfolio of loans. The allowance, in the
judgment of management, is necessary to reserve for estimated loan losses and risk
inherent in the portfolio. Accordingly, the methodology is based on historical loss
experience by type of credit and internal risk grade, specific homogeneous risk pools and
specific loss allocations, with adjustments for current events and conditions.

The Bank's process for determining the appropriate level of the allowance for loan losses
is designed to account for credit deterioration as it occurs. The provision for loan losses
reflects loan quality trends, including the levels of and trends related to non-accrual loans,
the level of impaired loans, past due loans, potential problem loans, criticized loans and
net charge-offs or recoveries, among other factors. The provision for loan losses also
reflects the totality of actions taken on all loans for a particular period. ln other words, the
amount of the provision reflects not only the necessary increases in the allowance for loan
losses related to newly identified criticized loans, but it also reflects actions taken related
to other loans including, among other things, necessary increases or decreases in the
required allowance for specific loans or loan pools.
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NOTE 4. BANK LOANS AND COMMITMENTS TO EXTEND CREDIT - CONTINUED

Allowance for Loan Losses - Continued

Commercial and Real Estate Loans -The level of the allowance reflects management's
continuing evaluation of industry concentrations, specific credit risks, loan loss experience,
current loan portfolio quality, present economic, political and regulatory conditions and
unidentified losses inherent in the current loan portfolio. Portions of the allowance may be

allocated for specific credits; however, the entire allowance is available for any credit that,
in management's judgment, should be charged off. While management utilizes its best
judgment and information available, the ultimate adequacy of the allowance is dependent
upon a variety of factors beyond the Bank's control, including, among other things, the
performance of the Bank's loan portfolio, the economy and changes in interest rates.

The Bank's allowance for loan losses consists of three elements: (l) specific valuation

allowances determined in accordance with ASC Topic 310 based on probable losses on

specific loans; (ll) historical valuation allowances determined in accordance with ASC

Topic 450 based on historical loan loss experience for similar loans with similar
characteristics and trends, adjusted, if necessary, to reflect the impact of current
conditions; and (lll) general valuation allowance determined in accordance with ASC Topic
450 based on general economic conditions and other qualitative risk factors both internal
and externalto the Bank.

The allowance established for probable losses on specific loans are based on a regular
analysis and evaluation of problem loans. Loans are risk rated based on an internal credit
risk grading process that evaluates, among other things: (l) the obligor's ability to repay;
(ll) the underlying collateral, if any; and (lll) the economic environment and industry in
which the borrower operates. This analysis is performed at the relationship manager level
with management oversight for all commercial loans.

The Bank utilizes a present value model that takes into consideration the borrower's ability
to repay amounts owed, the value of the collateral, the relative risk grade of the loan and
economic conditions affecting the borrower's industry, among other things.

General valuation allowances are based on general economic conditions and other
qualitative risk factors both internal and external to the Bank. ln general, such valuation
allowances are determined by evaluating, among other things: (l) changes in lending
policy and procedures, including underwriting standards and collection, charge-off and
recovery practices; (ll) changes in economic and business conditions; (lll) changes in the
nature and volume of the portfolio and in the terms of loans; (lV) changes in the
experience, ability and depth of lending management; (V) changes in the volume of past
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Allowance for Loan Losses - Continued

due and nonaccrual loans; (Vl) changes in loan review system; (Vll) changes in the value
of collateralfor collateral dependent loans; (Vlll) concentrations of credit; (lX) changes in
externalfactors such as competition or regulatory requirements; and (X) weighted average
historical loss factor. Management evaluates the degree of risk that comes with these
components on a quarterly basis. Each component is determined to have either no risk,
low risk, normal risk, high risk or extremely high risk. The results are then calculated to
determine an appropriate general valuation allowance.

Consumer Loans - An allowance for loan loss for consumer loans is established for each
pool of similar loans based on historical loss ratios and the total dollar amount of the loans
in the pool. The allowance for advisor referred consumer loans is determined through the
use of a migration analysis which measures the level of past dues and previous charge-
off history. The migration analysis monitors the history of past dues and charge-offs over
a running period of 60 months in establishing a basis for the likelihood of future charge-off
Ievels.

The following details activity in the allowance for loan losses by portfolio segment for the
years ended September 30,2017 and 2016:

2017

Commercialand

Real Estate Consumer Total

$ 859,439 $
(101,092)

1,208,702 $

468,037

2,068,141

366,945

Beginning balance

Provisions for loan losses

Chargeofls

Recoreries

Net charge-oft

Ending balance

Period end amount allocated to

Loans individually euluated for impainnent

Loans collectilely elaluated for impairment

Ending balance

(766,812) (766,812)

303,12990,397 212 732

90,397 (554,080) (463,683)

$ u8,74 $ 1,122,659 $ 1,971,403

$ 69,834 $

778,910

$ 69,834

1,901,5691,122,659

$ u8,744 $ 1,122,659 $ 1,971,403
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Allowance for Loan Losses - Continued

Commercialand
Real Estate Consumer Total20,l6

Beginning balance

Provisions for loan losses

Charge-ofls

Recoreries

Net chargeoft

Ending balance

Period end amount allocated to

Loans indiMdually elaluated for impairment

Loans collectircly elaluated for impairment

Ending balance

257 750

51 709 (787,247) (735,538)

$ 859,439 $ 1,208,702 $ 2,068,141

$ 53,010 $

806,429

$ 53,010

2,015,131

$ 699,76s $

107,965

(22,434)

74,143

1,496,832 $
499,117

(970,854)

183,607

2,'196,597

607,082

(e93,288)

1,208,702

$ 859,439 $ 1,208,702 $ 2,068,141

The Bank's recorded investment in loans as of September 30, 2017 and 2016 related to
each balance in the allowance for loan losses by portfolio segment and disaggregated in
the basis of the Bank's impairment methodology was as follows:

Commercial and

Real Estate Consumer Total2017

Loans individually elaluated for impairment

Loans collectilely ewluated br impairment

Ending balance

2016

Loans individually euluated fur impairment

Loans collectiwly ewluated fur impairment

$ 1,310,080 $ $ 1,310,080

275,609,805101 141 050 174,468,755

$ 102,451,130 $ 174,468,755 $ 276,919,885

Commercial and

Real Estate Consumer Total

$ 1,445,611 $
103,967,764

$ 1,445,611

283,845,602179,877,838

Ending balance
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NOTE 4. BANK LOANS AND COMMITMENTS TO EXTEND CREDIT- CONTINUED

Commitments to Lend

ln the normal course of business, the Bank has outstanding commitments and contingent
liabilities, such as commitments to extend credit, which are not included in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. The Bank's potential exposure to credit
loss in the event of non-performance by the other party to the financial instruments for
commitments to extend credit is represented by the contractual notional amount of those
commitments.

The Bank uses the same credit policies in making such commitments as it does for
instruments that are included in the consolidated balance sheets. Commitments to extend
credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates of one
year or less or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many
of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total
commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Bank
evaluates each customer's creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of
collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Bank upon extension of credit, is based
on management's credit evaluation. As of September 30, 2017 and 2016, the Bank has
committed credit lines, including credit cards, of $140,131,251and$147,817,4'19 of which
$52,048,89'1 and $58,286,745 respectively, had been advanced.

NOTE 5. FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK STOCK AND ADVANCES

The Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) System. As a member of this
system, it is required to maintain an investment in capital stock of the FHLB in an amount
equal to the sum of 0.04% of total assets as of the most recent quarter end and 4.10o/o of
outstanding advances. At September 30,2017 and 2016, FHLB stock totaled $3,124,100 and
$3,094,100, respectively. No ready market exists for such stock and it has no quoted market
value. The carrying value of the stock is its cost and it is evaluated annually for impairment.

FHLB term advances at September 30,2017 were $20,000,000 at a rate of 1.18o/o and mature
October 6,2017. At September 30, 2017 there was no overnight borrowings. There were no
FHLB overnight advances or term borrowings at September 30, 2016. The Bank pledges
eligible investment securities for its FHLB advances as defined in its blanket lien agreement
with the FHLB demand deposit account and FHLB stock.
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NOTE 6. PROPERW, EQUIPMENT AND SOFTWARE

Property, equipment, and software at september 30, 2017 and 2016, are as follows

2017 2016

Land

Ofiice buildings and imProvements

Office equipment, furniture, automobiles, and software

Work in progress

Total property, equipment, and software

Accum ulated dePreciation

Land

Leasehold im Provements
Office buildings and improvements

Office equipment, furniture, automobiles, and software

$ 2,525,627

34,194,062
74,485,821

$ 3,506,333

32,342,797

68,629,020

104 4.81 0.943

117J67,614

(77,334,380)

109,289,093

(70,222.019\

Net propefi, equiPment, and sof[ware

The Bank's property, equipment, and software at september 30, 2017 and 2016, are as

follows:
2017

$ 980,706
1,022,657

13,519,290

2016

$ $ 39,067 .074

$
1,022,657

14,499,996

5.755.948 5,747.891

Total Bank property, equipment, and sofhrare 21,278,601 21,270,544

Accum ulated dePreciation 0.540.173) (6. 763.380)

Net Bank property, equipment, and software fl9,23!J2!- $ 14, .164

Depreciation expense for fiscal 2017 amounted to $7,167,861 and $776,793 for property'

"q,lipr"nt, 
and software and the Bank's property, equipment, and software, respectively'

Depreciation expense for fiscal 2016 amounted to $5,648,20G and $980,995 for property,

equipm"nt, and software and the Bank's property, equipment, and software, respectively'

During fiscal 2017, there was one disposal of property, equipment and software for a gain of

$6,50b. There were no disposals of the Bank's property, equipment and software'

During fiscal 2016, there were no disposals of property, equipment, and software nor the

Bank's property, equipment, and software.
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NOTE 7. BANK DEPOSITS

Deposit account balances at September 30, 2017 and 2Q16, are as follows

2017

$ 10,592,987 $ 11,548,738

2016

Non-interest-bearing
lnterest-bearing demand

Money market checking
Money market savings

Certificates of deposit
Less than $100,000
Greater than or equalto $100,000

202,328,179
431,250,230

17,806,130

185,590,675
421,144,153

18,592,903
13,475,75912,627 ,658

Totaldeposits $ 674,605,184 $ 650,352,228

A summary of certificates of deposit by maturity as of September 30,2017 and 2016, is as
follows:

20'17 20'16

Maturing within
One year
Two years
Three years
Four years
Five years

Totaldeposits $ 30,433,788 $ 32,068,662

FCFS and its subsidiaries' directors, officers and their affiliates, including corporations and
firms of which they are officers or in which they and/or their families have an ownership
interest, are customers of the Bank. These persons, corporations, and firms held deposits of
$1,333,663 and $1 ,143,932 at September 30,2017 and 2016, respectively.

$ 23,173,091
4,298,263
1,O47j06
1,147,508

767.820

$ 23,905,018
5,621,228
1,262,831

236,780
1,o42.805
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NOTE 8. MISSION ACCOMPLISHMENT PLAN

The accrued Mission Accomplishment Plan (MAP) payable balance at September 30,2017
and 2016, consists of the following:

2017 2016

Current Award Pool (CAP)

Deferred Award Pool (DAP)

NoteAward Plan (MP)
Discount on MP
Elective Deferral Account (EDA)

Accrued I\/AP payable

Total EDA expense (credit)
included in commissions and advisor expenses

Accrued EDA liability activity
lnvestment income on designated investments
Net trading gains (losses) on designated investments

Net change due to market fluctuations

Deferrals from CAP and DAP

Exercises and payouts

Net change in accrued EDA

Accrued EDA- beginning of year

Accrued EDA- end ofyear

$ 2,048,431 s 821.047

$ 575,985
1,472,446

$ 617,181
203,866

$ 8,415,618

161,839,380

15,015,540
(5,866,846)

16,198,016

$ 8,728,890
157,9U,220

7,006,488
(2,849,845)

11,136,843

$195,600,708 $181,956,596

During fiscal 2017 and 2016, discretionary compensation awards were made for MAP of
$36,372,518 and $34,830,120, respectively. The CAP portion of the award is based on
available cash and projected cash requirements of the Company.

During fiscal 2017 and 2016, $8,009,652 and $7,006,488 of NAP was issued, respectively.
Since the notes do not incur interest, the value must be discounted at issuance and the liability
reported at the net amount. The discount rate used in 2017 was 5.32%o compared to the 2016
discount rate of 5.36%. The rates were derived from data received from Bloomberg for firms
similar to FCFS that had issued 1O-year debt in the past year. The amount of the discount will
be accreted as interest expense into earnings over the following 10-year period. Each
issuance of NAP will be paid 10 years from award date.

EDA is a deferred compensation plan as described in Note 1. Of the amounts deferred under
these plans, $16,198,016 and $11,136,843 have been invested in equity securities classified
as trading at September 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The expense and activity in the
related payable balances for the fiscal years 2017 and 2016, is as follows:

2017 2016

2,048,431

3,960,575

(947,833)

821,047

2,809,284

fi.127 ,566)

5,061,173

11,136,843

2,502,765

8,634,078
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NoTES.MISSIoNACCoMPLISHMENTPLAN.CoNTINUED

During fiscal 2017, cAP and DAP payments.qf,lS{99,930 and $16,065,048 were paid,

respectivety, to trin'p farticipants. Orfrng iit"rr z-010. CAP and DAP payments of $8'519'634

and 914,211,g14 were paid, respe.iirlrv, t; |\4lP_ participants. Anticipated payments of

$19,332,855 during the next tiscal year inctuoe cAP and the portion of the DAP payable to

eligible terminated participants'

NOTE 9. DEFERRED CAREER COMMISSTON PLAN

As of September 30, 2017 and2016, the total DCCP liability balance was $15,009,649 and

g14,594,BBS, resi#ir"fy. fn"t" balances have been invested in equity securities'

TheDCCPexpenseandactivityintherelatedpayablebalancesforthefiscalyears2olTand
2016 is as follows:

DCCP expense

Commissions and advisor expenses (credit)

Net change in accrued DCCP liability

lnvestment income on DCCP designated investments

Net trading gains (losses) on DCCP designated investments

Net change due to market fluctuations

Commissions Paid to advisors

Net increase in DCCP PaYable

Accrued DCCP liability - beginning of year

Accrued DCCP liability - end of year

2017 2016

$ 1,883,677 $1, 185,511

$ 792,077 $ 830,922

.600 354

1,883,677

(1,468,913)

414,764

1,185,51 1

144,141

14, 885 14.450.744

$ 15.009,649 $1

(1.041.370)

The company anticipates payments 9f- $864,646 during the next fiscal year to eligible

participants who terminated during fiscal 2016'
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NOTE 10. NOTESPAYABLE

Notes payable at September 30, 2017 and 2016, are as follows:

2017
Note accrues interest at 3.50% per annum,
payable in 53 equal monthly payments beginning
on [Vhrch 1, 2013 with an estimated balloon
payment at maturity of $2,412,244. The note is
fully secured by real estate held by FCFS and

matured August 2017. $

2016

$3, 010j82

NOTE 11. COMMON STOCK

The common stock of FCFS at September 30,2017 and 2016, is as follows (see Note 13)

2017 2016

Par value per share $ O.Ot $ O.Ot

Number of shares authorized 7,332,000 7,332,000

Number of shares issued 6,336,672 6,336,672

Number of shares repurchased
and held as treasury stock 178,584 178,5U

Number of shares outstanding 6,158,088 6,158,088

During the years ended September 30,2017 and 2016, no treasury shares were issued.

NOTE I2. CASH DIVIDENDS AND DISTRIBUTIONS TO STOCKHOLDERS

As a 100% owned ESOP, the dividend is paid to the Trust for liquidation of terminated
participants. During the years ended September 30,2017 and 2016, there were dividends
paid to the ESOP of $2,014,041 and $2,452,170, respectively.
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NOTE 13. EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN

On November 11 , 2002, FCFS repurchased all of its outstanding stock (the Redemption
Transaction), pursuant to the terms of the 1998 Shareholders' Agreement, to establish the
First Command Financial Planning, lnc. Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP). The price
paid in the Redemption Transaction was $28.24 per share.

lmmediately following the redemption, FCFS' voting common stock and nonvoting common
stock was split27.24 to 1 in the form of a dividend, and such nonvoting common stock was
converted to voting common stock, resulting in a fair value of $1.00 per share. FCFS then sold
7,332,000 voting common shares to the ESOP Trust.

Participants in the FCFP Profit Sharing Plan and Trust (PSP) were given the right to transfer
all or a portion of their respective PSP account balances (consisting solely of employer
contributions) on a voluntary basis to the ESOP, after receiving certain information relating to
the proposed transaction between FCFS and the ESOP.

FCFP designated an independent ESOP trustee to act exclusively in the interest of the ESOP
participants under the terms of the ESOP, its related trust, and applicable regulatory
requirements, in connection with any transactions involving the purchase of FCFS stock by
the ESOP.

FCFS entered into the FCFS Stock Purchase Agreement with the ESOP, containing the
following provisions:

. The ESOP acquired 100% of the post-split voting common stock of FCFS for a price
that did not exceed fair market value (as determined by an independent appraiser
engaged by the Trustee of the ESOP) of such shares.

. The value of the FCFS common stock will be based on the fair market value as
determined by an independent appraiser, taking into consideration all qualified and
nonqualified deferred compensation plans and the FCFS Eligible Agents'
Compensatory and Retention Program.

. The Board may declare an annualdividend in its complete and sole discretion.

The ESOP is a qualified non-contributory employee stock ownership plan and covers
substantially all employees, as described in the ESOP Plan document. The number of
shares available to be allocated to eligible employees will be determined by the number of
shares repurchased each year from terminated participants. The ESOP Trust has the right and
FCFS has the obligation to repurchase shares at the current market value at the
discretion of the ESOP trustee. The ESOP contribution expense for the years ended
September 30, 2017 and 2016, totaled $6,159,803 and $5,777,854, respectively, and is
included on the accompanying consolidated statement of operations in general and
administrative expenses.
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NOTE 14. PROFIT SHARING PLAN

FCFS has a qualified, non-contributory employee Profit Sharing Plan, which covers
substantially all of the Company's employees. There was no contribution to the Profit Sharing
Plan in 2017 or 2016.

NOTE I5. INCOME TAXES

For the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, the Company is a Subchapter S

corporation, and its income is generally not subject to federal income taxes, with the exception
of FCLIC, which is a C corporation subsidiary.

FCLIC's deferred tax balances as of September 30,2017 and 2016, consist of the following:

2017 2016

Deferred acquisition costs
Unrealized investment gains (losses)

Policy reserves and premium advances

Other

Current tax expense
Deferred tax expense

Provision for income taxes $ 426,458 $ 482,078

$ 1,360,305
1,037,997
2,348,834

(2,U2)

$ 1,392,215
1,414,621
2,163,550

(7,461)

Deferred tax liability $ 4,744,794 $ 4,962,925

FCLIC's deferred tax liability at September 30,2017 and 2016, is included in accounts payable
and other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.

The components of the provision for income taxes as of September 30, 2017 and 2016, are
as follows:

2017 2016

$ $267,965
158,493

369,881

112,197
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NOTE 16. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE TNCOME (LOSS)

The tax effects allocated to each component of other comprehensive income (loss) on
available for sale marketable securities is shown in the table below. All taxes are related to
gains on sale or change in market value on securities owned by FCLIC. The reclassification
adjustment is included in gains on sale of marketable securities, net in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations.

Before Tax

Amount

Tax (Expense)

Benefit

Net of Tax

Amount2017

Net change in unrealized gains during the period

Reclassification adjustment for net (gains) included in net income

Net change in other comprehensire income

2016

Net change in unrealized gains during the period

Reclassification adjustment for net losses (gains)

included in net income

Net change in other comprehensile income

$ 2,079,421

(1,641,997)

$ 414,603

(37,980)

$ 2,494,024

(1,679,97n

$ 437,424 $ 376,623 $ 814,047

$ 4,538,122 $ (788,402) $ 3,74e,720

1,969,705 (35,620) 1,934,085

$ 6,507,827 $ (824,022) $ 805

NOTE 17. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FASB requires disclosure of fair value information about financial instruments, whether or not
recognized on the balance sheet, for which it is practicable to estimate that value. ln cases
where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using
present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by
the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. FASB
excludes certain financial instruments and all nonfinancial instruments from its disclosure
requirements. This disclosure does not and is not intended to represent the fair value of the
Company.
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NOTE 17. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS . CONTINUED

A summary of the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of financial instruments at
September 30, is as follows:

Carrying

Amount

Estimated

Fair Value2017

Cash and cash equivalents

tMarketable securities, trading

IUarketable securities, availablefor-sale

Bank investments, held-to-maturity

Bank investments, availablefor-s ale

Federal Home Loan Bank stock

Loans

Deposits

Federal Home Loan Bank Advances

2016

Cash and cash equivalents

lvlarketable securities, trading

tvlarketable s ec u rities, avai lable-for-s ale

Bank investments, heldto-m aturity

Bank investments, available.for-sale

Federal Home Loan Bank stock

Loans

Notes payable

Deposits

$ 68,668,782

32,284,644

156,185,911

323,058,884

84,306,634

3,124,100

276,919,895

674,605,184

20,000,000

Carrying

Amount

$ 68,668,782

32,2U,440
156,185,911

320,594,076

84,306,634

3,124,100

274,476,186

674,615,636

20,000,000

Estimated

Fair Value

$ 44,414,U2
26,664,969

144,921,212

292,707,108

87,070,078

3,094,100

285,291,213

3,010,182

650,352,228

$ 44,414,U2

26,664,969

144,921,212

293,514,101

87,070,078

3,094,100

285,654,118

3,056,'132

650,366,088

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating its fair value
disclosures for financial instruments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The carrying amounts reported in the consolidated balance
sheets for cash and Bank's cash and due from banks approximate their fair value.
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NOTE 17. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED

Marketable Securities and Bank lnvestments - The fair value of marketable securities and
Bank investments is based on prices obtained from independent pricing services, which are
based on quoted market prices for the same or similar securities.

Federa! Home Loan Bank Stock - The fair value of FHLB stock approximates carrying value
as no ready market exists for such stock and it has no quoted market value.

Loans - For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently with no significant change in credit risk,
fair values are generally based on carrying values. The fair value for other loans is estimated
using discounted cash flow analyses, with interest rates currently being offered for loans with
similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality. The carrying amount of accrued interest
approximates its fair value.

Notes Payable - The fair value of notes payable is estimated using discounted cash flow
analyses using the Company's borrowing rate with similar terms and maturities.

Deposits - FASB defines the fair value of demand deposits as the amount payable on
demand. The carrying amounts for variable-rate money market accounts approximate their
fair value. Fixed-term certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow
calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered on certificates to a schedule of
aggregated expected monthly maturities. The carrying amount of accrued interest
approximates its fair value.

Federal Home Loan Bank Advances - The fair value of FHLB overnight advances
approximates carrying value as these federal funds are purchased and sold for one-day
periods.

Fair Value Measurements - The investments carried at fair value have been classified, for
disclosure purposes, based on a hierarchy established by GAAP, which consists of three
levels to indicate the quality of the fair value measurements as described below:

Level I - fair values are based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Company has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2 - fat values are based on inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical
or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices
that are observable for the asset or liability, or inputs that can otherwise be corroborated
by observable market data.
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NOTE 17. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED

Level S - fair values are based on inputs that are considered unobservable where there is
little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability as of the measurement date. ln this
circumstance, the Company has to rely on values derived by independent brokers or
internally-developed assumptions. Unobservable inputs are developed based on the best
information available to the Company which may include the Company's own data or bid
and ask prices in the dealer market.

Some of the Company's mutualfund holdings within the EDA and DCCP portfolios are actively
traded and fair values are based on quoted prices in active markets which the Company is
able to access as of the measurement date, therefore the Company has classified these
securities as Level 1. The remaining mutual fund holdings consist of accounts within the
Company's discretionary managed mutualfund account program known as Asset Managed
Solutions (AMS). The AMS accounts were created with different investment objectives and
each portfolio is comprised of mutualfund and money market instruments that are priced daily
and are classified as Level 1.

The Company's marketable securities and bank investments classified as available-for-sale
are publicly traded debt and equity instruments, but the majority were not traded with enough
frequency for the market to be considered active and direct quotes are not generally available.
Management therefore determines the fair values of these securities after consideration of
data provided by third-party pricing services and an independent broker/dealer. Prices
provided by the independent broker/dealer are not binding offers but are estimated exit values.
They are based on observable market data inputs which can vary by security type. Such inputs
include benchmark yields, available trades, broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads, benchmark
securities, bids, offers, and other market data. Where possible, these prices were
corroborated against other independent sources. The Company has classified these
securities as Level 2.

The Company has also classified holdings in United States government sponsored debt
securities held in the trading portfolio as Level 2 securities as they are priced using an OAS
model whose pricing incorporates LIBOR/Swap forward curves and credit spreads. For any
securities where an independent quote cannot be obtained and management judgment is
required to assign fair value, such assets are considered to be Level 3.
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NOTE 17. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED

The following table summarizes the investments measured at fair value on a recurring basis
as of September 30, 2017 and 2016:

Fair Value Measurements

at September 30, 2017, Using:

Quoted Pices in

Actirc Markets for

ldenticalAssets

(Lelel 1)

Signifcant 0ther

Obsenable

lnputs

(Lewl2)

Signifcant

Unobsenable

Inputs

(Lewl3)
Total

Fair Value

Marketable securities, tnding

Debt securities issued by the U.S.

gorcmment or sponsored agencies

Mutual funds

Awilabl+for-sale

Bonds

Debt securities issues by the U.S

golemment or sponsored agencies

Agency notes

Collateralized mortgage obligations

States, municipalities

and political subdiVsions

Trust Prefened

Corporate debt securities

Assetbacked securities

Total bonds

Equities

Mutualfunds

Total equities

Total alailable-fu r-sale

Bank inlestments, alailabl+for-sale

Corporate debt securities

Mutualfunds

$ $ 2,003,388 $

30,281,252

Total marketable securities - trading $ 30,281,252 $ 2,003,388 $

$ 2,003,388

30,281,252

$ 32,284,640

$ $ 296,106 $

6,144,243

6,277,312

1,444,695

10'1,676,893

188,364

296,1 06

6,144,243

6,277,312
'1,444,695

101,676,893

188,364

$

1 1 6,027,61 3 1 16,027,613

40,158,298 40,158,298

40,158,298 40,1 58,298

$ 40,158,298 $ 116,027,613 $ $ 156,185,911

$ $ 78,390,277 $ $ 78,390,277

5,916,3575,916,357

$ 5,916,357 $ 78,390,277 $Total Bank awilabl+for-sale
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Fair Value Measurements

at September 30, 2016, Using:

Quoted Pdces in

Actire Markets for

ldenticalAssets

(Lewl1)

Significant 0ther

Obsenable

lnputs

(Lewl2)

Significant

Unobsenable

lnputs

(Level 3)

Total

Fair Value

Marketable securities, trading

Debt secudties issued by the U.S.

gowmment or sponsored agencies

Mutual funds

Alailable-for-sale

Bonds

Debt securities issues by the U.S

gorcmment or sponsored agencies

Agency notes

Collateralized mortgage obligations

States, municipalities

and political subdirisions

Trust Prefened

Corporate debt securities

Asset-backed securities

Total bonds

Equities

Mutualfunds

Total equities

Total auilable-for-sale

Bank inwstments, anilable-for-sale

Corponate debt securities

Mutualfunds

$ $ 2,005,189 $

24,659,i80

Total marketable securities - trading $ 24,659,780 $ 2,005,189 $

$ 2,005,189

24,659,780

$ 26,664,969

$$ $ 300,694 $

6,510,679

6,063,306

1,823,411

95,055,705

179,206

300,694

6,510,679

6,063,306

1,823,411

95,055,705

179,206

109,933,001 109,933,001

34,988,211 34,988,211

34,988,211 34,988,211

$ 34,988,211 $ 109,933,001 $ $ 144,921,212

$ $ 81,003,163 $ $ 81,003,163

6,066,915

$ 87,070,078

6,066,915

$ 6,066,915 $ 81,003,163 $Total Bank available-for-sale
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NOTE 17. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring
basis, in certain circumstances such as evidence of impairment, and are subject to fair value
adjustments. Financial assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis during the
reported periods include certain impaired loans reported at fair value based on an estimate of
discounted cash flows.

The following table presents impaired loans that were remeasured and reported at fair value
through a specific valuation allowance allocation of the allowance for loan losses and
classified as Level 2 as of September 30,2017 and 2016:

2017 2016

Carrying value of impaired loans

before allocations
Specific valuation allowance allocations

$ 330,505 $
(56,120)

1,166,643
(48,268)

Fair value $ 274,385 $ 1,119,375

NOTE 18. NET CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS OF SUBSIDIARIES

First Gommand Financial Planning, Inc. - FCFP is subject to the SEC Uniform Net Capital
Rule (SEC Rule 15c3-1), which requires the maintenance of minimum net capital and requires
that the ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net capital, both as defined, shall not exceed '15

to 1. At September 30,2017, FCFP had net regulatory capital of $5,231,684 which was
$4,928,093 in excess of its required net capital of $303,591. FCFP's aggregate indebtedness
to netcapital ratiowas.STto 1. AtSeptember30,2016, FCFP had netregulatorycapital of
$2,660,817 which was $2,343,524 in excess of its required net capital of $317,293. FCFP's
aggregate indebtedness to net capital ratio was 1.79 to 1.

During the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, FCFP declared and paid dividends of
$2,000,000 and $24,000,000, respectively, to its parent company, FCFS.

First Command Life lnsurance Co. - FCLIC is subject to various statutory capital
requirements administered by the Texas Department of lnsurance. FCLIC's minimum capital
and minimum surplus requirements are each $700,000 for a total $1,400,000. As of
September 30, 2017, FCLIC's statutory capital was $11,088,230. FCLIC is also subject to
risk-based capital requirements. Management believes FCLIC exceeded the risk-based
capital levels as of September 30, 2017. At September 30,2017, $30,822,379 of FCLIC
assets were pledged to the ceding insurance company as a term of the reinsurance
agreement.
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NOTE {8. NET CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS OF SUBSIDIARIES - CONTINUED

FCLIC declared and paid dividends of $350,000 and $350,000, respectively, to its parent
company, FCFS, during the years ended September 30,2017 and 2016.

First Command Bank and First Gommand Financial Services, lnc. - The Bank and FCFS
are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by its primary federal
regulators, the Office of Comptroller of the Currency (OCC) and the Federal Reserve Bank.
Failure to meet the minimum regulatory capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory
and possible additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a
direct effect on the Bank, FCFS, and the consolidated financial statements. Under the
regulatory capital adequacy guidelines, the Bank and FCFS must meet specific capital
guidelines involving quantitative measures of the entities' assets, liabilities, and certain
off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices.

As of September 30, 2017 and 2016, the most recent notification from the OCC categorized
the Bank as well-capitalized. To be categorized as well-capitalized, the Bank must maintain
minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based, and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the
following table. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management
believes have changed the Bank's category.

Actual

Mnimum plus

CapitalConseruation

Buffer

To beWell

Capitalized Under

Prompt Corrective

Action Provisions

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

A ofSepter$er 30, 2017

Total Capital (to risk-weighted assets)

FCFS

FCB

Tier I Capital (to risk-weighted assets)

FCFS

FCB

Common EqurtyTier l(to riskweighted assets)

FCFS

FCB

Leverage Ratio (o quarterly awrage assets)

FCFS

FCB

$81,453,459

M,263,129

9.95%

14.39010

$75,723,065

41,308,822

9.25010

g.250lo

$81,862,773

44,658,186

10.00%

10.00%

70,333,362

62,291,726

859%

13.95%

58,338,208

31,815,667

7.13010

7.13olo

5.75%

5.75olo

65,502,549

35,722,8il

8.00%

8.00%

70,333,362

62,291,726

8,59%

13.95%

47,079,957

25,675,801

53,220,821

29,024,819

6,50%

6,50%

70,333,362

62,291,726

6.60%

8.30%

42,626,280

30,020,109

4,00%

4.00%

53,282,850

37,525,136

5.00%

5,00%
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NOTE 18. NET GAPITAL REQUIREMENTS OF SUBSIDIARIES - CONTINUED

Actual

Mnimum plus

Capital Conservation

Buffer

To be Well

Capitalized Under

Prompt Corrective

,htion Provisions

Arnount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

As of September 30, 2016

Total Capital (to risk-weighted assets)

FCFS

FCB

Tier lCapital (to risk-weighted assets)

FCFS

FCB

Common Equity Tier l(to risk weighted assets)

FCFS

FCB

Leverage Ratlo (to quarterly average assets)

FCFS

FCB

$71,724,553

61,984,880

8,85%

13.83%

$69,901,047

38,656,514

8.63%

8,63%

$81,044,693

44,819,147

10.00%

10.00%

65,407,819

59,886,627

8.07Y0

13.370/o

53,696,010

29,674,563

6.63%

6.63%

64,840,465

35,833,434

8.00%

8.00%

65,407,819

59,886,627

8.07%

13,37Y0

41,538,423

22,955,7%

5.13%

5.13%

4,00%

400%

52,682,878

29,1 14,665

51,179,827

36,740,262

6.50%

6.50%

5.00%

5.00%

65,407,8't9

59,886,627

6,39%

8.15%

40,943,862

29,392,210

The Bank and the Company must maintain certain minimum capital ratios as set forth in the
table above for capital adequacy purposes. Effective January 1,2016, the Company and Bank
were required to maintain a capital conservation buffer above certain minimum capital ratios
for capital adequacy purposes in order to avoid certain restrictions on capital distributions and
other payments including dividends, share repurchases, and certain compensation. The
conservation buffer was 0.625% at September 30, 2016 and 1.25% at September 30, 2017.
At September 30, 2017 and 2016, the Bank and the Company exceeded the capital
conservation buffer requirement. Once fully phased-in, which will be on January 1, 2019 for
the Company and Bank, the organization must maintain a balance of capital that exceeds by
more than 2.5o/o each of the minimum risk-based capital ratios in order to satisfy the
requirement. Management believes, as of September 30,2017, that the Bank and Company
meet all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject and there were no conditions
or events subsequent to September 30, 2017 that would change the Bank's or Company's
category.
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NOTE ,l8. NET CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS OF SUBSIDIARIES - CONTINUED

The Company's total risk based capital includes $9,148,694 and $4,156,643 of subordinated
debt at September 30,2017 and September 30, 2016, respectively. As previously discussed in
Note 1, the net amount of the NAP qualifies as part of regulatory total capital.

The payment of dividends from the Bank to FCFS may be subject to certain capital or
regulatory restrictions. During the years ended September 30,2017 and 2016, the Bank paid
dividends of $1 1,200,000 and $10,100,000, respectively, to its parent company, FCFS.

The Company maintains deposits with the Federal Reserve Bank in accordance with the
reserve requirements of Regulation D, issued by the Federal Reserve Board. At September
30,2017 and 2016, the Company's required balance was approximately $13,804,000 and
$1 1,727,000, respectively.

NOTE 19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is not currently involved in or aware of any litigation that it believes could have
a material adverse effect on its financial condition or results of operations.
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